

SAE

Original Meeting
Minutes

1856



Secretary's Book.

Johnson's, Tuscaloosa, - March 20th, 1856.

On Saturday night, the 20th of March, a portion of the students of the University of Ala. assemble for the purpose of organizing a Fraternity, to be called $\Sigma \rho \eta \alpha \text{ } \Lambda \text{ } \Omega \text{ } \Pi \text{ } \nu \text{ } \rho \text{ } \nu \text{ } \sigma$.

Mr.

N. L. McVotie was called to the chair. Having called the assembly to order, he stated the object of the meeting.

A motion was made that no one be considered a member of the $\Sigma \text{ } \Lambda \text{ } \Omega$ Fraternity, ^{except those then present} which was seconded, and unanimously adopted. Those present, who constituted the ^{new} band of brethren, were as follows: N. E. Cockrell, S. McLenis, N. L. McVotie, W. H. Foster, J. M. Kerr, A. E. Patton, J. B. Rudolph.

Moved, seconded, & carried, that the Officers of this Fraternity be called by the English names respectively,

and not by the Greek names designating
them.

The design of the $\Sigma. A. \Phi.$ badge having
been mentioned, a motion was made, that
the badge, as thus delineated be received,
it was unanimously adopted.

Moved, that a committee of three
be appointed to write the Constitution.
This was adopted, and the committee
appointed, consisting of

Moved, that a president & secretary, be
appointed, or elected, for a term of
office should continue till the
adoption of the Constitution.

C. A. 1st was chosen president, &
Geo. W. Kerr Secretary.

Moved, that pro m. we meet every
Saturday night at 7 o'clock.

Moved that a committee be app-
ointed to select a room for the
 $\Sigma. A. \Phi.$ Fraternity. The motion was
carried and S. McLenris, W. Kerr &
Geo. W. Kerr constituted the said committee.
Moved that the number of members

of this society exceed not the ratio of 13
to every 100 connected with the College.
This motion was adopted unanimously
and no further business being before the
assembly, it adjourned.

W. H. Foster, Secretary

G. Little's School room, Tuscaloosa,
March 15th 1856.

Pursuant to adjournment the Σ . A. E. Γ
met the second time. E. A. Patton
President. The Society proceeded to
adopt the Constitution.

Mr. Cockrell moved that each article
be read and adopted or considered sep-
arately. The motion was carried, and
the constitution read, several articles
of which were marked for revision.

The election of members came off.

Some names were proposed, among
which was that of N. N. Clements, who was
elected. Brother Rudolph was appointed
to give the gentleman of his election.

W. H. 100 absent.

The following Officers were elected: Gno. W. Kerr,
President, Gno. B. Rudolph Vice President,
N. L. DeVitie Corresponding Secretary, E. A. Patton
Treasurer & S. M. Dennis Secretary.

The new officers having taken their seats,
a motion was made that a ballot-box,
and marbles be purchased by the Treasurer.
A motion having been made, that a Com-
mittee of Three be constituted to see
Dr. Garland concerning the establish-
ment of the Σ A Ξ Society in the U. of
Ala., a motion for adjournment
was made, which was carried, and
the Society retired to the college, where
it regaled itself with a roast turkey
and warm coffee.

Gno. W. Kerr, Secty.

Tuscaloosa, March 22nd 1856.

Geo. W. Kerr, President.

Pursuant to adjournment
the $\Sigma. A. E. F.$ assembled in G. Little's school
room.

At the calling of the roll of B. Rudolph
was found to be absent.
The minutes of the preceding meeting were read
and received.

The election of members being next
in order, several names were proposed
for membership.

Messrs. Bullock, McLaughlin
and Tarrant were elected as members of
the society.

The pledge of the society was
next administered to Bro. Foster, who was
absent at the preceding meeting.
The Pledge having been administered to
Mr. N. V. Clements, Mr. Clements was
initiated into the $\Sigma. A. E. F.$ fraternity.
Cochran, Lemnis, and LeVotie were
appointed to prepare essays to be read
at the next meeting of the society.

Miscellaneous business being next in order,
a motion was made that the members
of the S. A. E. F. sign their names to
the constitution, thereby showing their
willingness to abide by its laws.

The motion was unanimously carried.
The preceding motion required also, that the
degrees of each member be written opposite
his name. It having been ascertained that
some of the members had not yet chosen
their degrees, a motion was made that
they be indulged till the next meeting,
which was carried.

The following motions
were also made & adopted:

1st. That a
committee of three be appointed to draft
by-laws. Bro. Clements, Patton & Rudolph
were constituted as the committee.

2nd,
That,
three members of the S. A. E. F. who may
have trustworthy friends in other colleges
South, have written communication with
them, if they choose, for the purpose of

organizing Chapters of the Σ . A. Ξ . Γ . in their
respective institutions.

3rd. That a gavel be made, and that the Treasurer
have it made.

A letter from Mr. Rake to Bro. Ruduef
relative to the Σ . A. Ξ . badge, was read by the
cor. Sec.

A motion was made, that Bro. Ruduef
write again to Mr. Rake concerning the
badge. The motion was carried.

The Society next adjourned. *Sine die.*

L. M. Dennis,
Secretary

Johnson's, Tuscaloosa, April 26th., 1856.
Saturday night.

Bro. W. Kerr, President of the Σ . A. Ξ . Fraternity.
The Society met again for the first time
since 22nd. March.

Bro. President having called
the Society to order, the ²minutes of the
last meeting were read by the Secretary.
The roll was called and Bro. Clements was
absent.

The initiation of members being in

order, Messrs. Bullock & Tarrant
were initiated into the $\Sigma \Lambda \Xi$
society.

A letter containing the
 $\Sigma \Lambda \Xi$ badge was then read
by the Cor. Sec.

A motion was made
that the sensible and accidental
qualities of the badge be dis-
cussed.

After its beauties and
defects had been pointed out
and commented on, it
was almost unanimously adopted
as the badge of the $\Sigma \Lambda \Xi$
society.

Bro. LeBotic made a
motion that a committee ^{consisting} of that
part of the Junior Class which
belonged to $\Sigma \Lambda \Xi$ Society be
constituted. For the purpose
of revising the Constitution.
Lennis & Patton consequently
formed the committee.
The Corresponding Secretary was

instructed to write to Mr. Rote, the artist,
and order nine badges, having the
names of the several members en-
graved upon them, one name
upon each pin or badge.

Some corrections and amendments
to the Constitution having been
made, the Society adjourned.

S. H. Dennis,

Secretary.

Σ. Α. Ε. Hall, May 3rd 1856.

The Σ Α Ε Society met pursuant
to adjournment, and was called to
order by the President J. W. Kerr.

The roll was called and Bro.
Glantz & Foster were absent.

The minutes of the last meeting
were then read, and some corrections
having been made, they were received.
Several names were proposed for member-
ship. Mr. Lucius Owen only was elected.
Bro. Thos. Tarraus was appointed to inform the

gentleman of his election.

The names proposed are as follows:

Brown, Leland, Owen, Piley, Thompson,
Walker, Winne and.

Mr. McLaughlin was initiated into the
secrets of the Σ . A. E. Society.

The elec-
tion of officers being in order, Brother
Cockree moved that the election of
officers be deferred till the next meeting
of the Fraternity. The motion was carried.

Brother Rudolph offered a sort of an
amendatory motion to that of Bro. Cockree's;
viz: that the officers of the Society be
chosen two weeks anterior to the time
of taking their respective seats, & that
this form one of the By-laws, carried.

The reading of essays next came off.
The essayists were Cockree, Dennis & de-
Votie. Brother Cockree having failed to
produce an essay ~~and~~. not having
offered a reasonable excuse, was
fined. Foster, ^{Rudolph} Kerr & Patton next essayists.

Miscellaneous business being
next in order, the committee on

The revision of the Constitution made its report, which was received. A motion was made that a committee be appointed to furnish the Hall with lights. ^{carried.} Bro. Clements, DeVotie, & Rudolph constituted the committee.

In order to meet the present exigencies a dozen chairs were purchased by one of the Brethren without the knowledge of the Fraternity. A motion was consequently made that the chairs be received as the property of the Society. The motion was carried.

A suggestion was made by Bro. DeVotie, that a stand be purchased for the President & a desk for the secretary.

Bro. Cockree thought it better not to purchase a stand at present, but that a ~~table~~ table would suffice for both the President & Secretary, and made a motion ~~a motion~~ that a table be bought in connection with the chairs.

The motion was carried, and Bro. Bullcock, Cockree, & DeVotie were constituted as the committee.

The following resolution offered
by Brother LeVotie was adopted:

Resolved, that the following be inserted into ^{the} Constitution

That the Corresponding Secretary
of each Chapter, immediately on enter-
ing upon the duties of his office,
shall write to the Cor. Sec. of the
Grand Chapter, giving the names
of the newly elected officers of his respec-
tive Chapter, and other news of interest
— The Chapters shall communicate
with each other at least twice during
a collegiate year.

Brother Rudolph hav-
ing expressed a desire to change his degree
in the subjects for composition, a motion
was made that he have the power so
to do. The motion was seconded and car-
ried.

Moved & carried, that a committee
be constituted to consider the
expediency of having the Consti-
tution printed. Bro. Cockrell, Patton
& Rudolph were appointed as this committee

Brother Poessident having announced
 that the ^{next succeeding meeting of the} Fraternity would be for the
 purpose of conversation, the
 Society adjourned.

J. M. Dennis,
 Secretary.

Σ. A. Ξ Hall,

May 11th Sat. Night. 1856.

The Σ A Ξ fraternity met orderly and
 quietly.

Bro. W. Kerr, President.

The Society was
 called to order for business.

The roll was
 called, and brother Clements was absent.
 The minutes of the last meeting were next
 read & received with one correction.
 Mr. G. S. LeVotie only was proposed for
 membership. The gentleman was elected,
 and Brother Rudolph was appointed to inform
 him of his election.

Election of Officers
 next came off.

The following is the result of the election: Gnr. B. Rudolph President, E. A. Patton Vice President, S. H. Dennis Corresponding Secretary, J. Tarrans Secretary, and N. N. Clements Treasurer.

The report of Brother President was read.

The Treasurer was indulged till next meeting.

This having been announced a ~~Special~~ meeting, the reading of essays was not performed.

Brother Cockree was fined 2 times for not rising when addressing the President. ~~Bro. Cockree was also fined~~

Bro. Foster was fined for having been absent, at the calling of the roll, from the Fraternity during the preceding meeting.

Bro. DeVotie made a motion that a committee be constituted to procure curtains for our windows. ^{Messrs.} Cockree, Dennis & Kerr were appointed on the committee.

The committee which was constituted to consider the expediency of printing the Constitution, was fined for non-performance of duty. Bro. Cockree being the Chairman of the committee, appeared to the Society for the remission of the same.

The fine was omitted, and the committee indulged till the next meeting of the Society.

Bro. De Votie was fined for disorder. The Fraternity after having transacted their business in a fraternal and social manner, quietly adjourned.

L. M. Stennis,
Secretary.

Σ.Α.Ε hall, Saturday eve, May 17th., 1856.

O. B. Rudolph Pres.

The Σ.Α.Ε fraternity met pursuant to adjournment.

At the calling of the roll brother W^o Laughlin and Tarrant were absent.

The following names were proposed for membership, viz: Thompson, Riley, Wells, Nimre, Ward, the former

membership

Reports

name was rejected, the others received. The treasurer having been indulged in the preceding meeting with respect to his report, presented it to-night to the fraternity. The report was received, and is as follows;

Essays

The reading of essays next came off. Bro. Foster, Patton & Rudolph were essayists. Bro. Tarrant, Buever & Clements were appointed next essayists.

Miscellaneous

Miscellaneous business being in order, the following committees were indulged, viz: the committee on the expediency of having the constitution printed, for two weeks; the committee on purchasing curtains for the windows & the committee on the table, desk &c. for the duration of one week. A consideration of By-laws was about to take place, but as one of the ^{Brotherhood} members was absent from the society, it was con-

considered better to defer this business till
the next meeting of the fraternity, when all
the members should be strictly required
to attend.

The society adjourned to meet
again on the next Saturday night.

L. L. Dennis, Sec. Pro. tem.

Σ A E hall Saturday eve May 24, 1856.

J. B. Rudolph Pres.

The Σ A E fraternity met pursuant to adjournment.

At the calling of the roll Bullock, Cochrane
& Kern were absent.

The minutes of the last meeting were
then read.

Initiation of members being
next in order Messrs Wells & Wayne were
admitted to the hidden things of the
Σ A E fraternity.

Election of ^{members} being next in
order; the name of the Hon. William R. Walker
was proposed and rejected.

Tarrant and Clements read essays;
Bullock fined for not doing so too.

Locknell,
Jennis, Devotie were appointed next
essayists.

Miscellaneous business being
in order, the Committee on the table made
their report which was received and was
that the table was in the hands of the workmen.

The Committee on curtains were
indulged a week longer.

Kerr, Dennis & Devotie
were appointed a committee to revise
the grip of the fraternity.

Some By laws
were next read & the Society proceeded
to consider them. Articles 1st, 2nd, 4th, 5th,
6th, 7th, 8th, ~~9th~~ were adopted. Article 3rd
was deferred. A motion was made, seconded
and carried that art 6th be placed in
the constitution.

~~times for~~ Devotie was fined four
times for misconduct; Foster three times.

A journal being in order - the
Society returned to college.

J. Y. Tarrant, Secretary.

Σ Λ E hall Saturday eve May 31, 1856.

L. B. Randolph Pres.

The Σ Λ E fraternity met in a quiet and orderly manner.

At the calling of the roll the following members were absent viz: - Foster & Kerr.

The minutes of the last meeting were then read. Bullock was fined for addressing the President without rising from his seat.

Devotie fined for disorder. Wynne fine for disorder.

Clements fined twice for having foot on chair.

Bullock fined for disorder. Wynne fined for disorder. Bullock fined for having foot on chair.

Devotie fine for disorder. Devotie fined having foot on chair. Wynne fine for having foot on chair.

Devotie fined for having foot on chair.

Wells fined for disorder. Bullock for having foot on chair.

The name of W. Thompson was proposed for membership and rejected.

Dennis & Devotie read essay: Locknell fined for being unprepared with an essay.

Foster, Kerr, & McLaughlin were appointed next essayists.

Fined.

A motion was made & carried that Mr. H.C. Cook be considered a member of the fraternity by virtue of his cooperation with the founders - he having ^{left} the University before the organization of the society. Devotie was appointed to inform him of the fact.

It was moved and carried that Treasurer purchase four candlesticks.

Herr & Devotie were appointed a committee to draw off the Constitution in a book.

Adjournment being in order the members returned to the University where they feasted their physical appetites on the fat thighs of a Shanghai goblet.

J. L. Yarrant, Secretary.

Σ A E Hall June 1st 1856

~~J. B. Rudolph Pres.~~
W. Foster Pres. Foster

The Σ A E fraternity met in a peaceable and orderly manner.

At the calling of the roll the following members were absent viz: Cookrell, Patton & Rudolph. The President being absent Bro Foster was called to the chair.

Election ^{of members} being in order the name of W. Searcy was proposed and rejected.

Bros Kim & McLaughlin read essays; Bro Foster was excused from his duty exercise.

Patton, Sarant & Wells were appointed next essayists.

It was proposed by some of the brethren that as next meeting would be the last time all the members of the Gen. Clap would be in attendance that a Valedictory be delivered before them on that occasion; accordingly Bro Dennis was elected to deliver the address.

Adjournment being in order; Bro Foster announced that the next meeting would be in the house & adjourned
J. F. Sarant, Secy.

ΣΑΕ Hall Surge 14, 1856.
J. B. Rudolph Pres

The ΣΑΕ fraternity met pursuant
to adjournment.

At the calling of the roll the follow-
ing members viz; Cookrell & Master.

M^r Rush Clements was
elected a member of the fraternity.

It was moved & carried that ^{the} names
of those proposed for memberships and
rejected should not be recorded in
the minutes of the meetings.

Bro Dennis next delivered before
the fraternity a valedictory address
replete with instruction & encouragement.

A copy of the address was requested of
him by Society.

A motion was made & carried
that a night be designated for the
initiation of the members of Freshman
Class, according the night of the
23rd of this month was appointed.

It being a violation of the
Constitution to initiate members

of the Freshman class, it was moved
that & carried that constitution be
suspended. It was moved that
the Freshmen be not allowed to wear
the badge of the fraternity until their
promotion to the Sophomore class -
which motion was also ~~adopted~~.
No further business being before
the ~~fraternity~~ ^{house} the ~~fraternity~~ adjourned

L. H. Sarant, Secretary

Σ A E Hall, June 23, 1856.

A. C. Tattam Secret.

The Σ A E fraternity met in an orderly
manner.

At the calling of the roll the following
members were absent: viz, Bicknell,
Foster, Rensdolph & Wells.

Election of members being next
in order Messrs ~~Wynne~~ ^{Thompson} & ~~Searcy~~ ^{Searcy} were
proposed for membership; the ~~latter~~ ^{latter} gentleman
was elected. Sarant appointed to see him.

Election of officers being next in order
the following gentlemen were elected

to fill the offices of the Society, viz
for president, Dennis, for vice
president, Clements, for cor. Sec.
Wynne, for Sec. McLaughlin, for Treasurer
Wells.

It was moved & carried that the members
of the Linedman Club be initiated on the
night of the ~~twelfth~~ of ~~the~~ July or not
at all during this term.

Members ~~Wynne~~ Bullock & Wells
were fined for creating disorder.

No further business being before
the house it adjourned.

J. H. Tarrant.
Secretary.

J. H. Tarrant & Wells are & Messrs
Wynne, Bullock & Clements appointed
next ex-officers.

J. H. Tarrant
Secretary.

Σ A E Hall, June 5, 1876.

A C Patton President

The Σ A E fraternity met in an orderly manner.

At the calling of the roll the following members were absent: viz, Cochran, Devote, Luster, Knudolph & McLaughlin.

Clements & Bullock read essays, Wynne fined for failing to produce one.

Dennis, Devote & Kern were appointed next essayists.

It was moved & carried that the Secretary read out at each meeting the names of those absent at any preceding meeting, and that such to render a reasonable excuse or be fined.

It was moved, seconded, & carried that a member be elected to deliver an opening address before the fraternity at the beginning of the next term, accordingly Bro Kern was chosen.

Wynne fined once for disorder. Bullock was fined twice for not rising to address the President. As further business being before the house it adjourned. J. H. Yarnall Secretary

July 12th / 56.

Σ. A. E. hall met in pursuant to adjournment

At the calling of the roll the following members were absent Cockrill, DePater, Foster, Ken, McLaughlin, Rudolph. Membership being next in order Mr. Pily was proposed and unanimously elected and initiated.

It was moved and seconded that essays not be read as it was the last meeting

McLaughlin, Patton, Larrat were appointed by President my essayists.

Motion was moved and seconded that an assessment of \$1.00 be made to pay the debts of the Society, was carried. Move that a called meeting be held next Tuesday night.

Debate fixed time for disorder

J. D. McLaughlin
Secretary

Oct 4th. - 36

ΣΑ Ε hall met in pursuance to adjournment,

At the calling of the roll the following members were absent. Patten, Devote, and ~~MacCallister~~ ^{McLaughlin}. It was moved that Brother Peen see some Negro about furnishing us with fire & water. The motion was carried. It was moved that the Secretary Book & remain in the hall. The motion was carried. It was moved & carried that the Treasurer buy a book for keeping his accounts. Brother Wynne & Riley were fined for putting their feet on the arms of their chair. It was moved and carried that Brother Riley's fine be repealed. Bullock was fined for disorder.

James A. Bullock
Com'sprovaling Secretary,

Oct 19 1856

EAE hall met in pursuant to adjournment

Patton & Riley

At the calling of the roll brothers ~~Bell~~ were absent Moved and carried that the reading of essays be put off untill the next meeting of the society Devotie fined for not rising from his ~~seat~~ ~~when~~ addressing the president

Moved and carried that no books or writings of any kind belonging to the society be carried out

Moved and carried that any one who violates this motion will be fined the amount \$5.

Also moved and carried that this motion be written by the secretary in the by-laws

The name of Mr Thornburn was proposed and elected
J. D. McLaughlin

Secretary

Σ A E hall ~~met~~ Nov 1st 1856
The Σ A E fraternity met in an orderly and
becoming manner

At the calling of the roll
McLaughlin was absent

The minutes of the last
meeting were then read and received

members
~~officers~~ Election ~~of~~ officers of
being next in order. Mr Paul
Jones was elected member.

Brother Riley ^{members}
was appointed to see him. Election ^{was}
next in order.

Bro. Patton was elected
President. Bro. Tarrant Vice President.
Bro. Wynn Treasurer. Bro. Clements
Secretary. Bro. Kerr Corresponding
Secretary.

J. D. M L
A motion was made
and carried that we move to another room
there being a family near us

Brothers Kerr and
Patton and Bullock were appointed on commit-
tee to select another room J. D. McLaughlin
Secretary

ΣΑΕ hall. Saturday evg Nov 5th 1856

The ΣΑΕ fraternity met in a quiet and becoming manner

The President being absent it was moved and carried that Bro. Therr^{take} ~~take~~ the chair. At the calling of the roll the following members were absent viz Bullock, Clements and Wynne

The reading of the proceedings of the last meeting were then read and received. Essays being next in order. Wells read essay. Clements, Devoti and McLaughlin were appointed next essayists

Wells was fined for using indecorous language in the hall

Tarrant was appointed to see Mr. Searcy and inform him of his election

There being no further business the society adjourned till next Saturday night

J. D. McLaughlin
Secy

Σ A E hall Saturday eve. Nov 4th 1856

The Σ A E fraternity met, orderly and quietly.
N. A. Clements President

The society
was called to order for business

The roll
was called, and Bro. Sherr, Tarrant and Wynn
were absent

The minutes of the last meeting
were then read and received.

Election of
members being next in order Messrs Smith
and Hall were proposed for membership.
Bro Patton was appointed to see the former,
Bro Bullock the latter

Essays were then read
by Devotic and McLaughlin. Bro Devotic
was fined for having foot on the table.

Bro Owen, Riley and Tarrant were
appointed next essayists. Miscellaneous
business being next in order. Bro Bullock
was fined for being absent and not reading
essay

It was then moved and carried that
Bro Sherr take the chair, until Bro

Clements, who was President, gave his excuse
for being absent. ~~Bro~~ The Brother was fined
Bro McLaughlin then gave his excuse and
was fined Moved and carried that the
Treasurer procure a half ream of paper
for the Society. The taking seats of new
officers was put off till next Saturday
night. There being no further business
the Society adjourned to meet next Saturday
night

J. D. McLaughlin
Secretary

ΣΑΕ, Hall. November 22nd 1856.

The ΣΑΕ fraternity met ~~at~~ pursuant to adjournment, A. E. Patton, President.

At the calling, the roll Bro Kerr and Nymne were absent. Reading of the minutes was next in order they were read, criticised and received.

Election of members being in order the following names were offered ~~up~~ for election, ~~Messrs~~ Larratt, Judkins neither were elected.

The new officers ~~took~~ their seat. President Patton took the chair and called on the old officers to make their report, President made his report; he stated that the prospect of establishing several chapters at different colleges, Secretary made his report saying that he has kept the proceedings of the meetings correctly and neatly. Treasurer made his report, ~~stating~~ stating that he had more money than he could account for and made a very good report, and all these reports were unanimously adopted.

Essays were read by Broo Owen, Pily read very good essays and were satisfactorily written. Lorrant being urged sailed to produce an essay and a

very long discussion ensued. ~~and a vote~~. Some advocating
one side, some another. Lorrant gave no excuse only that
he was not told that he was an Essayist, and the
President thinking that he had no power to fine the
member, he excused him on that ground, ~~and~~
A motion was made that a clause should be inserted
in the Constitution giving the President power to
fine any member who failed to bring forward an
essay without giving a reasonable excuse.

Secretary was instructed to insert this motion
in the Constitution. Wells, Wymore & Bulluck next Essayists.
The absent members were brought up and all ^{who were absent then} being
absent but, Lorrant, having no excuse was fined.
Members were called on to give their report in
regards to the members who were elected. Lorrant stated
that he had saw Mr Searey and that he declined to
joining Bro. Bulluck made his report in regards
Mr Hall, though he had not spoken to him on
the subject, Patton was appointed to see Mr Smith
he having been spoken to on the subject from another
Society, and therefore thought it unnecessary to say
any thing more to him.

The Society adjourned.

N. N. Clements, Secretary.

ΣΑΕ Hall, November 29th 1856.

S.A.E. Hall met in an orderly and quiet manner.

President Patton took the ~~chair~~, called the fraternity to order for business.

The roll was called and the following numbers were absent Bro's Ken, De vote and Wynn.

The proceedings of the preceding meeting were read, corrected and received.

No names were proposed, and the meeting being appointed as a social meeting no business was performed only what was necessary.

The absent members were brought up. Bro. Wynn gave excuse for three preceding meeting, was fined an two and excused an one. The rest of the absent members were absent and therefore gave no excuse. Bro. Wynn was fined for disorder.

The Treasurer was instructed to pay the servant who waited ~~at~~ on the Hall the sum of \$2.00, and this to be recorded and remembered at the end of the term at the settlement of contracts. Bullock fined for disorder.

The members then enjoyed themselves in a social manner, and afterwards adjourned.

N. N. Clements, Secretary.

Bro. De vote fine for disorder

ΣΑΕ Hall December 6th, 1856.

ΣΑΕ ^{my} Fraternity met in an orderly and quiet manner.

President A.E. Patton ~~to~~ ^{took} the Chair, called the Society ~~to~~ to order and proceeded to business.

The roll was called and the following members were absent Bros Lorrant and Wymme,

Bro Wymme came in after the roll was call

The election of members were next in order numerous names were proposed, but only two were elected, which were Indrins, and Bro. Bullack was appointed to inform the gentlemen of his election, Mr Pickett was also proposed and elected, Clements was appointed to see the gentlemen and hear what he would do,

The next in order was reading essays Bros Bullack, Wells, Wymme being essayists, no one of these brethren had essays and were fined all of them, Bros Clements, DeVotie, McLaughlin were appointed next essayists.

Bros DeVotie and Wymme were brought up for absences, and their excuse was only that they

had no watch and depended upon some other person for the time and depending on this ~~for~~ as their excuse the president very reasonably and justly fined both of the gentlemen.

Nothing further being before the Fraternity, adjournment was next in order.

The Society adjourned, sine die,

W. N. Clements Secy.

^{my} Tuscaloosa, Ala. December 13th 1856.

A. C. Patton, President.

Pursuant to adjournment
the $\Sigma A E$, Fraternity assembled in Tuscaloosa.

At the calling of the roll
Bro. Wynn was found absent.

The reading of the minutes of last was read and received. No names were proposed for membership. Reading of essays was next in order, Clements, DeVotter, and McLaughlin, read essays, satisfactory to the Fraternity. Bros Owen, Bily, and Yarrant, were appointed the next essayist, to read essays at the first meeting in next term.

It was moved and carried, that the Treasurer be instructed

to pay ~~the~~ rent for room which we now occupy,
It was also moved and carried, that Bro. Kerr be
instructed to find us another Hall, provided he thinks
that he can find a better one than the one we
now occupy.

The absentees were brought up, and
Bro. Larrant gave his excuse, stating, that he was ^{too} unwell
to come down, president excused him on this
excuse. Bro. Wynn found himself giving no
excuse. The fraternity attended to all business
that was necessary and was about to adjourn,
When Clements moved that the Society remain
a short time longer and talk or discourse on
the past History of the society. Some of the members
discoursed on the subject, some said nothing and
after some little time the Society adjourned
untill the first of the year, 1857.

N. N. Clements, Secretary.

January 3rd 1857

ΣΑΕΗΑΙ. The Fraternity met pursuant to adjournment in a quiet and arduous manner.

The roll was called and the following members were found absent, Bro Bullock, De Votie and Tarrant.

The reading of the minutes of the last meeting were read and received

No names were proposed for membership.

The election of officers was next in order, Bro. McLaughlin was elected President,

Wynne elected Vice President, Lewis elected for Recording Secretary, Patton Corresponding Secretary, Wells elected Treasurer.

After these elections the reading of essays was next in order. Bro's Lewis and Riley read very good essays. Bro Tarrant was absent and therefore did not read an essay. We were highly gratified with the essays that were read.

The next essays on Wells Wynne and Bullock. Under the head of miscellaneous business Bro. President called on Bro. Wynne

for the opening address, forgetting it at the commencement of the meeting. Bro. Wynn being unwell during vacation did not write one and asked for indulgence from the members. It was granted for one member to be delivered at the next meeting.

It was disputed whether the President should appoint a Committee to Copy the Constitution in case we should have an application for a new Chapter.

A Committee of Three was appointed to copy the Constitution, this committee consist of Clements, Mills and Kiley. It was moved and carried that the ~~Constitution~~ Committee be allowed to take the Constitution from the Hall. Bro. Wynn was brought up for absence, he gave no excuse and was fined.

President appointed the next meeting for a social meeting and the Society selected the subject for discussion which is, 'The merits and beauty of Prose and Poetry.'

Nothing more being before the Society adjournment was next in order. Society adjourned.

M. N. Clements Secretary

Σ A E Γ Hall.

June 11th 1837

The Fraternity met pursuant to adjournment at # Prudent City Abs. The minutes of the last meeting were read and rec'd.

At the calling of the roll the following members were absent - Clements & Patton

Election of members there being in order Mr Meadors was elected. Bro Bullock was appointed to inform him of his election.

The Corresponding Secretary being absent it was moved and carried that Bro DeVotie perform his office. He read a letter from Bro N. S. DeVotie of Princeton N. J. - he also read a letter from Mr Adams of S. C. College to Mr Cook asking for a badge and consenting to join the Σ A E Γ. It was moved ^{and carried} that the Corresponding Secretary write to Mr Adams. Certain changes in the constitution recommended by Bro N. S. DeVotie ^{was} ~~were~~ adopted namely - that the word to be inserted in the constitution instead

of degree Bro Bullcock was fined
for being absent at the last
meeting. Bro DeVotie was fined
twice for disorder. Bro Wymme
was also fined for disorder. The
Society then adjourned until Saturday
Evening the 17th of January

A. A. Clements

Secy

Σ.

S. A. E. Roll Jan 17th 1857

A. E. Patton President.

The house met at the usual hour. At the calling of the roll Clements, Owen and Tarrant were absent. The minutes were read and with slight corrections were received. New officers then took their seats. Brother M'Saughlin took the President's chair and made a short but appropriate address. Letters of correspondence were then called for, Brother DeBatie read a letter from T. C. Cook, stating the desire of some friends at Nashville to establish a chapter of the S. A. E. at that place. Brother Cook also sent ^{names} of those friends attached to the pledge to secrecy. Wells and Bullack read essays; Wynne was indulged on account of sickness. Clements DeBatie and Owen were appointed next essayists. Treasurer made his report which was received.

Moved & carried that we should send the constitution to Nashville and a letter read before the society, to Adams of S. C. Patton was fined for absence.

There being no further business the society adjourned.

A. E. Patton sec. Pro tem

Σ A E Hall Jan. 24, 1857.

J. D. McLaughlin President

At the calling of the roll the following members were found absent Namely Brothers Clement and Wynn. The Sec. read the minutes of the last meeting and they were received. Brother Clement failed to read an essay, and was fined. Brother Devote was fined. Bro. Devote was fined. After the house had been called to order Owen and Wynn read very good essays. Bro's Patton Riley & Sarvant were appointed next essayists. Eight volumes of Shakespear's works were presented to the Society by Bro Riley. The ~~books~~ trunks of the Society were presented to Bro Riley for his valuable gift. It was moved and carried that if, after the assembling of the Society, anyone ^{should} leave the hall and remain out over 15 minutes he shall be fined, ^{unless he shall have a reasonable excuse} This is to be inserted in the By Laws. Motion for adjournment being next in order, the Society adjourned until Saturday Evening January 31st

J. D. McLaughlin.
Secy.

ΣΑΕ. Hall. January 31st 1857.

J. M. McLaughlin President
The Society met pursuant to adjournment.
At the calling of the roll Bro Wynne, ^{as elements} ~~was~~ ^{were}
absent. The minutes of the last meeting
were read and adopted. Election of
members was next in order. Bro G. C. Watts
was elected - Bro's Yarrant read a very
beautiful essay - Bro Patton in his very
interesting essay displayed truly the great
advantages of having true friends and the value
of sincere and faithful friendships - Bro Riley
failed to read an essay - Bro's Wells, Wynne
and Bullock were appointed next Essayists
Bro Bullock made a very favorable report
about Bro Mr. Meadors - He had not
made a final resolution - Bro Yarrant
was out over 15 minutes. The Society then
adjournment until Saturday Evening Feb. 7th

J. L. McQueen

Sec'y.

Σ A E H *Hall* February 7th 1857

J. D. McLaughlin - President

The society met pursuant to adjournment.

At the calling of the roll Riley and Wymore were absent. The minutes of the last meeting were read and received. Election of members was next in order. No one was elected.

Reading letters by the corresponding Secretary - Patton read a letter from Mr. Talbot Adams - accompanied with the pledge of the Σ A E Fraternity - signed by him. He said that he would do everything in his power to establish a chapter of our Society at the South Carolina College - The constitution was ordered to be sent to Mr. Adams - Bro Bulluck ^{had} read a letter from Mr. Kern stating that if it was the wish of the Society - he would establish a chapter at Lebanon University - The Society so wished it.

Bro Wells read a very interesting essay (over the left). Bro Wymore was absent and consequently did not read an essay. Bro Bulluck read an essay. Absentees were next called - Wymore

was absent - Clements was excused - the
President judging his excuse to be a
reasonable one. Bro Garrant was excused
~~the Society~~ then adjourned till
Saturday Evening the 15th of February
J. S. M. Owen
Society.

The next

Receipt for Fever
5oz Rheubarb Syrup 4oz Tinct-Balmain
10gr Piperin 20 drops Oil Sansaphras
3 scruples Soda Grind the piperin thoro-
ghly in a mortar ad 2oz Syrup Rheubarb
and grind it to geather then mix all togeth-
er and Shake it well

Σ A E Hall February 14th 1857

J. D. McLaughlin President

The society met pursuant to adjournment,

At the calling of the roll Devote was absent

The minutes of the last meeting were read and received
Election of members were next in order

Mr. Booker was elected. Br Bullock was appointed
to see Mr. Booker. Reading letters by the corresponding
secretary was next in order? None were read by him

Brother Clement read ^{an obligation} a letter from Mr. Phlegging to
^{signed} with their names to it. It ^{was} Money and carrying that we send the
constitution to Mr Phlegging & Granberry.

It was determined to have the constitution printed
Brother Devote was appointed to write the constitution
& Brother Riley & Patten to correct it. It was moved
and carried that each member pay the sum of one
dollar at the commencement of each term to the
society, Brother Ujvare was excused for absence
on February the 7th & Jan. the 24. Fines for absence
Jan the 3rd. Brother Riley was fined for absence on
failing to read an essay on February the 7th. He appealed
in this fine Brother Ujvare appointed the 20 of Feb.
for the trial of this case. No farther business
being before the house it adjourned until
Saturday the 20 of February

J. S. Conroy Secy.

Σ A E H Hall February the 20th 1857

J. D. McLaughlin President

The society met pursuant to adjournment.

At the calling of the roll (the) brother Rypire was absent. The minutes of the last meeting were read and received. The election of members was next in order. Brother Riley was elected President, Brother Wynne Vice president, Brother Devote was elected Secretary. & Brother Patten Corresponding Secretary, Bro. Wells Treasurer.

Reading of letters by Corresponding Secretary was next in order. A letter was read by brother Patten from Mr. Fields & Roberson of Nashville Ten. requesting a couple of lodges of the society, also one from Mr. Tollett Adams stating that he had received the constitution. The reading of essays ^{was} in order. It not being the night for reading none were read. It was moved and carried that we omit in printing of the constitution, the motto with its signification and also with the meaning of D.A. It was moved and carried that we have 25 copies of the constitution.

Printed under the supervision of Ro. Rudolph
No further business being before
the society it adjourned on tile Saturday
the 7th of March 1857.

T. J. Con

Σ. A. E. Hall March the 7th 1857.

P. D. McLaughlin President

The society met pursuant to adjournment. At the calling of the roll the following members were absent namely Bro. Tarrant. Coleman. Wells. The minutes of the last meeting were read (read) and received. Reading of essays were next in order. Brother Patten, & Riley read very good essays. The reading of letters by corresponding Sec. was next in order none were read. It was moved and carried that a committee of one be appointed to collect the resolutions that have been carried since the commencement of the society up to this time. and write them off. Bro. Wells was appointed.

No. further business being before the society it adjourned until Saturday the 15th of Mar.
L. L. Linn sec.

Σ A E Hall March the 14 1857
J. D. McLaughlin President.

The society met pursuant to adjournment. At the calling of the roll the following members were absent Bro. Clement, Bulloe, Devote, & Wells.

The officers took their seats. The reading of letters, by corresponding sec. Bro. Patent read a letter from Mr. P. Whiggin stating that he had received the Constitution. The President expecting to be absent from college for some time. Bro. Bulloe was elected in his stead. Brother McLaughlin was appointed Vice President.

It was moved and carried that the society permit to any of its members who may so desire, to have manufactured gold studs bearing the design of the society. The Treasurer read his report which was received. It was moved and carried that the Treasurer pay the boy Clemen one dollar & 4.

No further business being on the order of the house it adjourned until Saturday the 22^d of March.

J. L. Owen Sec.

8. 10
E. A. C. Hall.

March 21st. 1859.

J. A. Bullock Pres.

The ~~society~~ ^{Chapter} met per-
suant to adjournment.

At the calling of the roll DeBotie was
absent. The Corresponding Secretary ~~was~~ ^{stated}
that he had received a letter from Mr. Pait,
stating the amount of money due ^{to the Society} and
the amount paid to him.

Wells failed to read an essay - Clements
read an essay.

McLaughlin, DeBotie & Owen were appointed
next essayists.

It was moved and carried that the ~~society~~ ^{Chapter}
present Bro. E. P. Riley with a badge of the Society.
It was moved and seconded that each member of
the Society subscribe one dollar, to present this
poin to Riley and ^{the sum remaining} ~~what remained~~ after pur-
chasing the poin, be deposited in the treasury.

Several suggestions by the members were
made in regard to ~~the~~ ^{the} gold studs to be man-
ufactured by the jeweller of the Society. No form
of the studs was determined.

Clements, Bullock DeBotie were excused by

The President for their absence from the Chapter
at the calling of the roll on the 14th inst. Wells
was also excused.

Wells was fined for disorder

It was moved and carried that the Chapter
elect a ~~person~~^{member} to deliver an address at the
first meeting of the Chapter, the third term
Debotie was elected to deliver the address

The report of Patton, appointed to see,
Wilkinson was next ~~called~~^{demanding}. He ^(Wilkinson) said
that he would join ^{the Society} if he could ~~without~~^{do so}
~~for dishonoring himself~~

Wells was fined again for disorder -

The Chapter then adjourned -

Given at Debotie

Secty.

ΣΑΕ Hall

March 28th 1857

J. A. Bullock Pres.

The ^{Chapter} Society met pursuant to adjournment
Clwen and Garant were absent at the calling
of the roll.

The Corresponding Secretary read a
letter from J. S. Lanier the Corresponding
Secretary of the Nashville Chapter
containing \$35 for badges - The officers of
that Chapter are Pres. Butts, V. P. & A. Field
Rec. Secty. J. S. Lanier, Treas. Prescottt.

De Botie read McLaughlin read essays
Clwen was not present and consequently did
not read an essay.

Pattou, Garant & Wells were appointed
next essayists

De Botie was excused for being absent at
the calling of the roll on the 21st inst.

Wells appointed a committee of one
to find ^{out} all the laws passed by the
Chapter - ~~He had~~ ^{suggest his} report - He had
collected them.

The Chapter then adjourned until
the first Saturday Evening of third
term.

De Botie was fined for disorder

J. A. Bullock
Secty.

ΣΑΕ Hall April 25th 1857.

The Chapter of the Lewis of Ala met pursuant to adjournment.

No one was absent at the calling of the roll no ~~members~~ ^{persons} were proposed for membership. The Rec. Secty ^(Patrol) read a letter from J. Martin & Lemming of the Lewis of A. C. The names of the officers of that chapter are J. Martin & Lemming Pres. J. G. Gathing Secty. W. W. Mutchhead I. P. D. W. Garratt Treasurer.

William DeBotie & McLaughlin were appointed next essayists.

It was moved and carried that the ~~Secty~~ ^{Treasurer} be instructed to pay \$12 for the rent of the Hall.

It was moved and carried that the Treasurer pay all the expenses of the Chapter and what money is remaining in the treasury be devoted to the purchase of a pin to be given to Bro E P Riley.

Wells failed to read an essay - was ^{by the Pres} fined and apprehended to the Society for the remission of the fine Wells was fined for disorder.

It was moved and carried that the Corresponding Secty be ^{write} to the Chapters

and consult with them about the expediency of holding a Convention of all the Chapters.

Cleven was excused for absence from calling of roll on March 28th and also from failing to read an essay. Garrant was fined

~~the Chapter then adjourned~~
was fined for laughing out disorder
Wells and Garrant were for laughing out
in the hall. Both appealed.

The Society then adjourned.

quarto de Votiv
Secy.

ΣΑΕ Hall

J. A. Bullock - President

May 2nd 1887.

The Chapter met pursuant to adjournment
At the calling of the roll, McLaughlin and
Garrunt were absent.

No members were proposed for membership.
Patton the Sec. read a letter intended
to be sent to the different Chapters, suggesting
Tusculossa for the place and the commence-
ment day of this Union for the time for
holding a General Convention of all the
Chapters of the ΣΑΕ Fraternity.

Comments and devotions read essays -
McLaughlin was not present and consequently
could not read an essay.

It was moved and carried that the name
of the founder of the Society be inserted in
the By-Laws of the Society.

The fine on which Wells appealed to the ^{Chapter} ~~Society~~
namely (Failing to read an essay) ^{was withdrawn} ~~was~~ ^{by the Chapter} ~~by the Society~~ - ^{and} ~~and~~
~~by the Constitution doubled.~~ The President was
sustained for fining Wells for laughing. The fine
by the Constitution was doubled. Garrunt was
excused by the ^{Chapter} ~~Society~~ of the fine on which he
appealed to the Chapter.

Owen, Patton & Tarrant were appointed
next essayists - A meeting was appointed as a social ^{meeting}
The Society then adjourned
of under divine
blessing.

S. A. E. Hall May 9th 1851,

At the calling of the roll Devotion and
Tarrant were absent. The elections of officers
then came off, and the following were
elected, Bab. Wells Pres. L. Owen Vice Pres.
W. Clement Cor. Sec. G. Bullack Rec. Sec.
J. D. McLaughlin Treasurer,

This being a social meeting no essays
were read.

The Boy Chem. could not attend the
hall any longer, consequently we settled
up with him in full and employed a
boy by the name of Studier to wait on the
room - promised to pay him 2\$ for this term
McLaughlin was fined for his absence on
last Saturday night. ^{and also for failing to read an essay} It was then moved
and decided that two members be appointed
to confer with the other societies of
this Univ. upon the subject of petitioning

the trustees to repeal their act of last
July forbidding the students to join a
secret society. Patterson and Clements
were for this trust.

J. D. McLaughlin.

See ^{pro quo.} appointed by Pres.

Σ Α Ε Η Π Α Τ Η Ν Α, Μ Α Υ 16th 1857

J. A. Bullock, Pres.

Σ Α Ε Η

The reports of the
Σ Α Ε Η Fraternity at Acad. of Ala met pur-
suant to adjournment.

Quinn, Patton, & Carrant, read essays
Wells, Lelements, and LeVotie were
appointed next essayists

Wells made his report about ^{paying} ~~reporting~~
for the rent of our room. ^{the present term} He stated that he had
received receipts from Mr. Arish (the owner of the
room). He also received a receipt for the
payment of the rent for the room for the
~~last~~ term before last.

Carrant was excused for his absence
from the hall on May the 2nd & May the 9th
LeVotie was fined for being absent from the
hall on May the 9th inst.

The committee, appointed to confer with
the other Secret Societies, about petitioning
the Trustees to repeal the law, passed last
July, for bidding new students from joining
the Secret Societies, made their report. The
other Societies had not arrived at any
conclusion, in regard to the matter.

The Chapter then adjourned.

• J. G. Lubbock
Society.

"With the Spirit of
our Lord and Saviour,
let your feet find
ground to walk on."

J. G.

Within this
So pure is
Let none but
Remain it

Clements

J. G. Clements.

Assisted by
John

Jas. A. Bullock Pres.

E A E Hall May 23rd

~~R. H. Wells Pres.~~

The Chapter met
pursuant to adjournment.

This being the night for new officers to take their
seat, Bro. Wells took the chair as Pres.

The Pres. made his report, stating that he thought
our Society was in a prosperous condition. ~~The Treas-~~
~~urer then made his report.~~

Clements, and Devotee read essays. McLaughlin,
Crown and Patton were appointed next essays.

Bro. Devotee read a den from Mr. Lynch for
two tabs, in regard to which the Treasurer was instructed
to ~~of~~ tell Mr. Lynch that we would pay him soon.

It was moved ~~that~~ and carried that the Cor.
Secty. be instructed to write to Bro. Rudolph, and,
if he had not had our Constitution printed, to
request him to destroy the copy, which he has.

Bro. Bullock was absent over fifteen minutes.

There being no further business, the Chapter
adjourned.

J. A. Bullock.
Secty.

ΣΑΕ HALL May 30th - 57.

R. H. Wells, Pres.

The Chapter met pursuant to adjournment.

At the calling of the roll no members were absent.

The minutes of the last meeting were read and adopted.

Goldston of Autauga Co was elected as a member. A. S. Clemens was appointed by the Pres. to ^{inform} the gentleman of his election.

The Cor. Sec'y ^{read} a letter from A. H. Gallaway of the N. C. Chapter ~~of the~~ ^{of the} ~~Chapter~~ ^{Chapter} through ~~which~~ ^{which} Gallaway consented to hold ~~his~~ ^{his} a convention of all the Chapters at this place. The Cor. Sec'y also read a ~~letter~~ ^{petition}, signed by D. M. Thompson, R. H. Spencer, J. W. Middleton, R. M. Simmons, Wm. J. Westbrook of Union Union, Murfreesboro, Tenn. for a Chapter of the ΣΑΕ Society. The Cor. Sec'y also read a letter from the Nashville Chapter, written by Wm. B. Robertson Jr. asking us certain questions, and stating in the letter that they would abide by the decisions of the Grand Chapter. The questions

are as follows. A member of our Society had been dismissed from their Union. They ask; first; Is this ^{person} member still a member of the $\Sigma\Lambda\Theta$ Fraternity? second; if he is a member does he still belong to this Chapter? third; if he does belong to this Chapter, is he disqualified for the office of delegate to the General Convention, on account of his absence from this Institute?

McLaughlin, Owen, and Patton read essays. Garrant, Bullock, and Clements were appointed next essayists.

A Chapter was granted to the students, petitioning for one, at Union Union. It was moved and carried ^{that} the Gov. Secy, to ^{be instructed} inquire of the Nashville Chapter, whether, ^{in their opinion} it is expedient to establish a Chapter at the Union University, ^{hoping that they may lay aside all local prejudices.}

The Gov. Secy was instructed to write to write to the Chapter of ^{the} ~~Western~~ ^{the} Union, and state that it is the opinion of the Grand Chapter, that our brother ^{dismissed} there is still a member of the $\Sigma\Lambda\Theta$ Society - that he still belongs to that Chapter - that ^{he will} be is a suitable ^{delegate} ~~person~~ to the General Convention's if

he is well acquainted with condition of ^{and waste} that
chapter. The Cor. Secy was instructed to
send a letter. Mr Langlin was fined for
disorder - Bullock was fined for being absent
from the hall over 10 minutes last Saturday
night. Patton was also fined for disorder.

The Chapter ~~having~~ ^{instructed} the Cor. Secy
to write to the students of Union Univ., that
a definite ^{an} answer would be given them in a short time.

The petition of the Union Univ. ^{students} was ordered
to be sent to the Nashville Chapter for
their action. No further business, the Society adjourned
J. A. Bullock, Cor. Secy.

Benton's Hill, Ala.

ΣΑΕ Hall. June 6th - 57
R. R. Wells. Pres.

The chapter met pursuant
to adjournment.

At the calling of the roll
Devotee and Patten was absent.

The minutes of
the last meeting was read and approved.
Tarnent & Clements read interesting essays.
Bullock was fined for neglect of duty.
Devotee ~~Moore~~ McLaughlin and Cower
were appointed next essayists.

Brother Clements made his report
with respect to seeing Mr. Golston.
Mr. Golston said that he would join the
ΣΑΕ Society, and felt a very much honored
at being elected by our society.

Brother McLaughlin was fined for disorder,
and expelled to the Society. Brother McLaughlin
was fined for the second time for disorder.

Brother McLaughlin was excused for his
first fine, by the Society. Our next meeting
was appointed as a social meeting. It was moved
and carried that the Treasurer shall take down
all fines imposed on the members.

No other business the society adjourned. J. A. Bullock, Sec.

ΣΑΕ HALL June 13th 57.

~~R. H. Wells Pres.~~ L. M. Owen Pres. pro tem

The Chapter met pursuant
to adjournment.

At the calling of the roll
Brother Wells was absent.

The minutes ^{of the last week} were read
and approved.

There being presenting no essays
were read.

The Com. Socy read a letter from
L. S. Thompson of Union Univ. Tenn. It
was urgent in nature a Chapter ^{of the ΣΑΕ} for Union
University. He seemed to be very anxious to
have a Chapter of our Socy at Union Univ.

The Com. Socy also read a letter from
Briggs, No. 158 Bowery, N. Y. City. It desired
to have the privilege of manufacturing the
badges of the ΣΑΕ Fraternity. He offers to make
badges for \$5 per badge, and studs ^{and sleeve} ~~and sleeve~~
buttons of the same design as our badge for
the button for \$2.00 - the studs for \$7.00 per set.
He is strongly recommended to us by Bro. J.
C. Cook of Princeton, N. J. together with all
of our numbers at the north.

It was moved and carried that

appointed our Jeweller
Mr D. Briggs of - N. Y. St. at no 158 Bowery St.
The Com. Secy was instructed to write to
^{Mr Baile} Mr Baile and request him not to make any
more badges, ^{at present} and to give us the number of pins
he has on hand, but ^{that we had changed our} not yet to tell him, ^{unless}

The Com. Secy was instructed also to
write to Mr Cook and ask him to request
a badge of Mr Briggs to send to the Grand
Scribe; ~~but that~~ Bro Cook was not to make
any contracts with Mr. Briggs on the part of
the Society.

The Com. Secy was instructed to write
to each of the Chapters and refer them
to that clause in the Constitution relating
to the procuring of badges.

It was moved and carried that
all members wishing to study on the
Saturday nights during the examin-
ations be excused from their absence
from the races.

Patterson was excused for his absence
last meeting. A vote was given.

The Chapter then adjourned.

J. A. Bullock
Secy

Σ A E Hall July 4th 1857

R. K. Wells, Pres.

At the calling of the roll ^{McLaughlin} ~~was~~ was absent
No Essays were read.

It was moved and carried that a Chapter of the Σ A E Fraternity be granted to the students at Union Coll., petitioning for one. The Cor Secy was instructed to forward the pledge of the Fraternity to those students in order that they may sign their names to it. This signature being ~~sent~~ obtained the Cor. Secy was instructed to send the Constitution to them.

It was moved and carried that the compliments of this Society be tendered to those students of the Univ. of Ala who have ~~joined~~ pledged themselves to join us.

It was moved and carried that Mr Goldsboro be initiated into this Society on the night of the 11th July.

G. S. M. Allen was elected next President

R. A. Bullvek	"	"	"	V. "
R. C. Clements	"	"	"	Cor. Secy
R. K. Wells	"	"	"	Rec. "

J. D. McLaughlin was elected ~~next~~
next Treasurer of this Society

The Society then adjourned

J. A. Bullock
Rec. Sec'y.

N. N. Clements was elected to deliver an
opening ^{address} the first ^{regular} meeting of this Society
in the Session of 1857 & 8.

J. A. B.

Σ A E: Hall

Oct. 5th 1857

R. W. Wells, Pres.

This being a called meeting of the Chapter no essays were read. The Rev. Sec'y had a good many letters from the various chapters but none of them were very important.

He had ~~not~~ received the sample pins, ordered by the Grand Chapter, from Mr Briggs of N. C. They were very superior pins compared to those made by Mr Rait.

It was resolved not to elect more members, considering that the pledge, required by the Trustees of the Univ. of Fla., is a binding-

It was moved and carried that the Rev. Sec'y be instructed to urge upon the other chapters the necessity of holding a General Convention of all the chapters, some time about next Christmas.

It was moved and carried that the Rev. Sec'y send the money for those pins sent to the Chapter, by ^{to} Mr Briggs, the manufacturer, of N. C.

The Chapter then adjourned
J. A. Bullocke Secy

This was the ^{meeting} night for Bro Golsaw to
take a degree. He chose ~~the~~ ^{the} ~~subject~~ -
~~subject~~

"The Loyal Women of
The South,"



Union University. The petitioners had received
the Constitution of our Society—

It was moved and carried that the
next Society be suggested to Nashville, as the
place of holding a Convention of all the
Chapters.

The Chapter then adjourned

R. K. Wells

Cor. Sec.

B
Darling Papa:—

Sweetest
I love you
so much
I love you
so much
I love you
so much.

D
Dearest Mamma:—

"
Sweetest
I love you
so much
I love you
so much
I love you
so much.

E. E. Hall.

Oct 25th / '57.

L. J. M. Owen, Pres.

The president called the house to order at the usual hour.

At the calling of the roll Mr Bullock was absent.

Mr J. H. Judkins was initiated into the mysteries of the E A E, Fraternity.

Cor. Sec. N. S. Clements, stated the substance of a letter received from Union University; stating that they were somewhat inexperienced and desired information as to how they should proceed.

Mr N. S. Clements, was called to the chair, and presided during the initiation of Mr J. H. Judkins.

Reading of essays being next in order. The following gentlemen read very beautiful and instructive essays; ^(not arguments) by Clements, Devotee, McLaughlin failed to read an essay.

and was fined.

"Pointment of essays" ^{being} next in order. The following members were appointed to read essays: viz, Bullock, Clements, & DeVolie.

Motion of adjournment being in order we adjourned sine die.

R. H. Wells
Secy.

E. A. E. Hall.

Oct 31, 1857.

J. G. M. Owen Pres.

The society met pursuant to adjournment.

" Mr. Wells made a motion that we defer the election of members until the initiation of Mr. Vaughan.

Clements was called to the chair to preside the during the initiation of Vaughan.

" At the calling of the roll the following members were absent: viz, Bullock, Devolie & Jenkins.

The initiation of members being in order, Mr. V. H. Vaughn was initiated into the E. A. C. Fraternity.

The Cor. Sec. read a letter from F. W. Middleton of the ^{University} of Union. Stating that they had organized and was greatly pleased with it. One also was read from J. G. Baker of Nashville.

A very interesting letter was read by the cor. sec. from Lewis Hilliard of Chapel Hill. Stating that they regarded Mr. Field as a worth and high minded gentleman.

Reading of essays being next in order; Bullock being an essayist failed to produce one, in consequence of his health. Clements read a very interesting essay. DeVotie also read an essay previously read before the chapter. McLaughlin, Tarrint & Will were appointed next essayists.

Miscellaneous business being next in order. Mr DeVotie suggested the idea of procuring a new room for the session of the chapter.

Clements was appointed to search
Town for a new Hall.

"Motion for adjournment was next
in order, the motion was carried;
The members retired to college and
regaled themselves on a roast turkey
and hot coffee."

"Wells made a motion, that we
instruct the com. sect. to write to
Nashville & Chapel Hill, informing
them to let Mr. Hill remain a
member of the Nashville Chapter
and ^{pass} ally all agitator as regard
his conduct,

R. H. Wells.

Σ. A. E. Hall

Nov. 9th 1843.

J. G. M. Green Pres.

The society met pursuant to adjournment.

At the colling of the roll DeVolie & Judkins were absent.

The corresponding Sec. read a letter from Nashville chapter, requesting us to establish a chapter of our Fraternity at Tallahassee, Florida.

Reading of essays being in order the following members read essays: viz. M^r Gaughlin, Jarrant & Wells.

Bullock, Clement & DeVolie were appointed next essayists.

Miscellaneous business being in order the question whether or not we should establish a chapter of our Fraternity at Tallahassee Florida. Bro. Vaughn made a motion that we write to Nashville Chapter, inquiring of something relative to Tallahassee College, before we grant them permission to the establishment of a chapter at Tallahassee.

"In what ^{one} ~~Harmony~~ of the ²
south" ~~Annals~~ "
"Life is, ^{what} ~~as~~ we make it"

B G C

B G C

B G B

B G B

ent made a motion, that
it meet once a month,
motion was carried.

President appointed the
next a social meeting.

Vaughn took P.A. for his degree.

for adjournment - was next
we adjourned sine die.

B. H. Wells.

E. A. E. Hall

Dec 12th 57.

Bullock.

The society met pursuant to

At the calling of the roll the
members were absent, viz: Kerotic, Judkins &

as fined three times for creating disorder.

The regular time for the election of officers

members were elected to fill the respective

V. H. Vaughn. President. vice Pres. Sargent,

lements. Secretary. Judkins. & Treasurer M^r Laughlin.

read a letter from Nashville Chapter suggesting the

establishing a chapter at Oaklin Miss. Also

one from J. Adams from S. C. stating that he had not established a chapter yet, but intended to establish shortly.

One read also from Chapel Hill suggesting the propriety of establishing a chapter at William & Mary Va.

A motion was made that we permit the Nashville chapter to establish a chapter of our fraternity at Dublin Miss with the condition that it is a college of some notority. Which motion was carried.

A motion was also made that we defer holding a general convention of the several chapters until next summer.

A motion was made that when a student leaves the ^{college} university of Alabama and going to any ~~other~~ college where our fraternity exists, not to receive him as a member of the I A G before inquiring into his character. It was so that.

By the assumption of Bro. Bullock, permission was given to Chapel Hill to permit Horniss to establish a chapter at William & Mary Va. Several other motions were made &c.

This being the last meeting of this term Bro. Bullock was elected to deliver an address before the society.

The motion for adjournment being in order, a motion for adjournment was made, which was carried.

H. H. Wells.

Σ. A. E. Hall

J. L. M. Owen Pres.

Jan 8th 1858.

The society was called to order at the usual hour of the Pres.

at the calling of the roll the following members were absent: y, Bullock, goodkins, Farrant.

Corres. Sec. read a letter from Nashville stating that they had withdrawn the petition as to the establishment of a Chapter at Oaklin Miss. ~~It~~ also, that Mr. J. K. Green stated that he intended to withdraw from our Fraternity.

The Cor. Sec. was instructed to write to the Nashville Chapter giving them the reasons for retaining our Society in the Southern States, and informing them that a convention will be held next summer and if at that convention of the majority of the delegates shall determine to extend the Society to the Northern States, we will abide by their decision - also to tell Mr. Green that honor requires that he should give his pin to his Chapter without price.

A motion was made that this be the last meeting of this chapter during this collegiate year and that we sell the furniture and pay the rent for this room, and that we keep our constitution and transact business privately at college through the means of the car sec.

Mr Devote made a motion that we burn all the essays & useless papers in the hall.

We adjourned to meet no more.

R. K. Wells.

Black is black. Snow falls
Houses stand

Gold is yellow. Heat melts; had

Lead is metal. ^{is} Pumpkin: money

Birds sing. Study: to may

Cassidy sail. Hasten makes waste
Trees are plants. Cats catch mice

He likes swim. Mr. J. sells: call us
Cotton was tardy. Clouds bring: rain

Many was studied. ~~was~~
Conch may be angry. Sprinkles

Adit 125 Oliver

\$150.82 1/2
26 27 1/2

7465-

Jan 20 th	1 Bottle whiskey 1.25	1 Water Bucket 1.00	\$ 2.25		
Jan 30	1 Hat ^{2.00}	1 pr Shoes 3.00	Cash Feb 13 th 5.00	10.00	
Feb 20	1 Skillet 2.25	1 plug tobacco 75 ^{ct}	3.00		
Feb 25	1 plug tobacco 75 ^{ct}	2 th Sugar 50 ^{cts} pr #	1.75		
Mar 13 th	12 1/2 th Bacon 35 ^{cts} pr #	Mar 28 th 12 th Pork 10 ^{cts} pr #	6.50		
Mar 30 th	8 th Bacon 35 ^{cts} pr #	1 qt whiskey 2.00	April 1 st 1 qt whiskey 2.00	6.80	
Mar 16	1 qt whiskey 2.00	Mar 20 th 1 qt whiskey 2.00	4.00		
Mar 26	11 th Bacon 35 ^{cts} pr #	Mar 27 34 1/2 th flour 1.25	10 yds osnaburgs 75 ^{cts} pr #	15.49	
April 7	6 1/2 th Bacon 35 ^{cts} pr #	April 12 th 1 plug tobacco 50 ^{cts}	2.27 1/2		
April 22	1 plug tobacco 50 ^{cts}	May 7 th 7 th Bacon 35 ^{cts}	2.95		
May 7-8	lost by Cythia	May 20 th 1 plug tobacco 50	.85		
May 24	1 plug 7 th Bacon 35 ^{cts}	June 10 & 11 lost	2.80		
June 24	1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cts}	July 3 rd 5 th Pickle Pork	2.50		
July 4	1 pk meal 50 ^{cts}	July 12 1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cts}	1.25		
July 12	4 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cts} pr #	July 20 2 1/2 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cts} pr #	2.27 1/2		
July 22	1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cts}	July 28 3 1/2 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cts} pr #	1.22 1/2		
Aug 2	lost	Aug 2 1 pk meal 50 ^{cts}	Aug 16 5 th Bacon 35 ^{cts}	2.42 1/2	
Aug 29	5 th Bacon 35 ^{cts}	Sept 8 7 th Pickle Pork	4.20		
Sept 22	7 1/2 th flour 2.50	Oct 17 1/2 pk meal 25	2.12 1/2		
Jan 11	W.S.H.K 9 yd packout 5.85	9 yd Hornsper 4.50	10.35		
	1 pr pants 3.00	2 Head dresses 1.00	1 shirt 1.50	1 looking glass 75	6.25
	1 set plates 1.00	1 plug tobacco 40	Sept 26 Speckle Pork 55 ^{cts}	3.15	
Sept 28	1/2 pk meal 25	Oct 5 1/2 pk meal 25	50		
Oct 6	6 1/2 th Bacon 35 ^{cts}	1 pk meal 50	1 qt whiskey 1.00	3.27 1/2	
Oct 24	2 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cts}	1/2 pk meal	Nov 7 5 th Pickle Pork	2.95	
Dec 19	5 th Pork 1.00	1.00		1.00	

Alexander

Feb 10 1# Coffee 50^{cs} 1# Sugar 75- Candy 1.00
 Mar 12 1 plug tobacco 75^{cs} Mar 13 8^{lb} Bacon 35^{cs} 5^{lb}
 Mar 18 1 Bottle Whisky 2.50. Mar 31 1 plug tobacco 50
 April 15 4^{lb} Bacon 35^{cs} 5^{lb} May 18th 2 plug tobacco 50^{cs} 5^{lb}
 July 6 & 8 lost. July 26 lost. July 30 1 plug tobacco
 July 7 to S. Hill 1st shoes 3.00 1st handkerchief 75^{cs} 1st Tuck Comp 1.25
 Oct 17 1st B. H. 86.50 Credit 1.25

2.37
 2.25
 3.50
 3.00
 2.40
 1.25
 5.00
 6.50

23.97
 23.2
 45
 125
 Due 2-80
 15.0
 20
 250

- 1 Daisy Cogle.
- 2 Alice Wildman
- 3 Grace Berry.
- 4 Mary Pomeroy.
- 5 Trina Taylor.
- 6 Edith Wheeler.
- 7 Corlette Barnes.
- 8 Belle Clements
- 9 Charlotte Linnis

Jackson

Date	Description	Amount	Date	Description	Amount
Feb 19	1 Bottle 2.00	2.00	Feb 24	1 qt whiskey	7.00
Feb 12	1 qt whiskey 8 th Bacon 35 ^{cts}	2.00	Feb 27	10 th Bacon 35 ^{cts}	6.70
Feb 17	17 1/2 th Bacon 35 ^{cts}	3.50	Mar 18	4 th Bacon 35 ^{cts}	9.62 1/2
Mar 16	1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cts}	75	Mar 23	1 Bottle whiskey 2.00	4.58
Mar 18	1 Bottle whiskey 2.00	2.00	Mar 26	1 plug tobacco 50	4.10
Mar 24	1 plug tobacco 75	75	April 2	1/2 gal whiskey 4.00	1.25
Mar 31	1 Bottle whiskey 2.00	2.00	April 28	4 1/2 th Bacon 35 ^{cts}	6.00
April 7	11 1/2 th Bacon 35 ^{cts}	3.50	April 29	1/2 bus meal 1.00	4.02 1/2
April 29	1/2 bushel of Peas 1.50	1.50	May 4	Cash 2 1/2 th in gold	2.50
May 4	all 5 th lost by Jeff	5.00	May 5	7 th Bacon 35 ^{cts}	5.35
May 11	12 th Bacon 35 ^{cts}	3.50	May 9	1 plug tobacco 50 ^{cts}	.76
May 25	1 coat 12.00	12.00	May 28	1 th twist tobacco 2.00	6.20
May 31	gun 100 lost by Jeff	100.00	June 4	1 plug tobacco 75	14.80
June 8	gun 80 lost	80.00	June 22	12 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cts}	3.25
June 22	12 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cts}	3.50	June 24	1 plug tobacco 75	2.10
June 30	4 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cts}	3.50	July 7	To one days rations to all hand at 17 1/2 ^{cts} per hand	4.95
July 7	To one days rations to all hand at 17 1/2 ^{cts} per hand	2.92 1/2	July 4	To two day rations for Archie & Alex	1.92 1/2
July 7	5 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cts}	3.50	July 6	lost by Jeff	75
July 9	lost	0.00	July 14	lost to all hand	1.92 1/2
July 12-13-14-16-17-18-19-20	lost	0.00	July 20	7 1/2 th Pickle Pork	5.80
July 20	7 1/2 th Pickle Pork	3.50	July 22	1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cts}	1.40
July 27	1 day lost by Nina	0.00	July 28	1/2 day to all hand	3.47 1/2
July 28	4 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cts}	3.50	Aug 5	4 1/2 day to all hand	2.80
Aug 5	4 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cts}	3.50			2.15
					7.50
					4.37 1/2
					1.40

Jackson

Aug 11 5# Bacon 35 ⁰⁰	Aug 17 1 Pk meal 50	2 25-
Aug 17 1 plug tobacco 76 ⁰⁰	Aug 17-18-20-21-22-23-1/2 25-	1.88 1/2
Aug 4 & 5 lost by Mira.	Aug 27 all trash gang lost	1.40
Sept 3 3 1/2 # flour 25 ⁰⁰ H.	Sept 8 8 # Pickle Pork 35 ⁰⁰ H.	8 7 1/2
Sept 15 1 plug tobacco 75 ⁰⁰	Sept 22 8 1/2 # Bacon 80 ⁰⁰	7 5 1/2
Sept 22 1/2 day lost by all hands		+
Charg to (D S Shadin to visit to Olivens Child)		6.00
10 To call visit to Sam.		1.00
Sept 1 to Proc + medicine for Jackson)		1.50
Sept 13 attendance on India transport)		5.00
Sept to S H & K June 22		
1 Hoop 2.50. jr Shoes 3.00. Straw hat .25		5.75-
1 pr Scissors .75-		
Sept to S H & K.		
3 prs Jeans 2.25-. 3 prs Domestic 2.10	1 Bottle Ess Annamont 15 ⁰⁰	4 50
1 Cravat .75- 1 Hankerchief .50	2 Boxes Blacking .20 ⁰⁰	1.45-
2 nd Sugar .50 1/2 Crushed Sugar 30 ⁰⁰	1 Cset 40	1.20
Sept 15 lost and use of mule	Sept 29 1/2 Bottle whiskey	1.67 1/2
Sept 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15 Rations	Oct 6 4 # Bacon 35 ⁰⁰	
Sept 29 1/2 day to all hands.	Oct 8 2 prs shoes 6.00	
Oct 6 1/2 day to all hands	Oct 13 1/2 day to all	
Oct 20 8 # Pork. Oct 20 7 # Pickle Pork 35 ⁰⁰		
Oct 20 & 21 1/2 both days to all hand	Nov 3 1/2 day to all hand	

Credit 75 68 7/2	Cotton 129.63 3/4	\$ 71.62 1/2
	86 8 7 1/2	\$ 93.12 1/2
	1365.1 1/4	

Jim

7 25

Feb 10	1 pr Show	3.50	1 Skillet	2.25	-	5	75-
Feb 20	1/2 plug tobacco	3 7/2	1 plug tobacco	75	ct	1	12 1/2
Mar 11	1 plug tobacco	75	1/2 Bushel meal	1.02	1/2	1	8 7/2
Mar 11	1 qt whiskey	2.00	1 plug tobacco	75	ct	2	75-
Jan 28	14 th Pork	10 th 1/2	Feb 12	16 th Bacon	35-	7	00
Mar 5	15 th Bacon	35 ^{ct}	Mar 23	4 1/2 th Bacon	35 ^{ct}	6	8 2 1/2
Mar 26	12 th Bacon	35 ^{ct}	Mar 29	1 plug tobacco	75 ^{ct}	4	95-
Mar 29	15 th Asualburgs	75 ^{ct}	April 8	11 1/2 th Bacon	35 ^{ct}	11	6 2 1/2
April 12	2 plug tobacco	1.00	April 22	1 plug tobacco	50	1	50
May 6	9 th Bacon	35 ^{ct}	May 18 th	1/2 bush meal	600	4	15-
May 20	5 th calico	50 th	June 1	4 1/2 th Bacon	35 ^{ct}	4	5 7 1/2
June 1	1/2 bush Peas	150-	5 th flour	20 ^{ct}	1/2	3	50
June 7	8 th Pickle Pork	35 ^{ct}	June 8-9	lost	-	3	15-
June 25	1 plug tobacco	75 ^{ct}	1/2 Bush meal	-	-	1	75-
July 4	7 1/2 th Pickle Pork	35 ^{ct}	July 11	2 plugs tobacco	-	2	5 2 1/2
July 12	13 lost	-	July 13	1/2 Bush meal	1.00	1	35-
July 24	1 plug tobacco	75 ^{ct}	25 th	1 pk meal	50	1	25-
July 28	5 th Pickle Pork	35 ^{ct}	Aug 6	1 pk meal	50 ^{ct}	2	25-
Aug 11	3 th Bacon	35-	Aug 24	6 th Bacon	35 ^{ct}	3	50
Sept 8	7 th Pickle Pork	35 ^{ct}	1 pk meal	50	-	2	95-
Sept 19	5 th Bacon	35 ^{ct}	Sept 22	1 plug tobacco	75 ^{ct}	2	50
Sept 26	8 th Bacon	35 ^{ct}	1/2 pk meal	25 ^{ct}	Sept	2	00
Sept 28	1/2 pk meal	25 ^{ct}	Oct 6	5 1/2 th Bacon	35-	2	25-
Nov 8	1 pk meal	1.00	1 5 th Pickle Pork	10	7 1/2 pk meal	2	50
Nov 12	2 pr Show	7.00	5 th Pickle Pork	-	-	9	00

72.50
3.00
9.00

Robert gemison

102

Feb 10	Jan 10	2 plug tobacco	1.50	1 Sifter	60 ^{cts}	1 Spillat	225	4	35-
Mar 4		2 plugs tobacco	1.25	1 qt whiskey	2.00				3.25-
Jan 28	20 th	Port 10 ^{cts}		Feb 12	16 th	Bacon	35 ^{cts}		5.60
Mar 5		20 ^{1/2} th	Bacon	35 ^{cts}	1 pr	Cotton cards	1.00		8.17 1/2
Mar 31		1 bottle	whiskey	2.00	2 plugs	tobacco	1.50		3.50
April 2		1 qt	whiskey	2.00	Apr 7	1 th	nails	20 ^{cts}	2.20
April 15	14 th	Bacon	35 ^{cts}	Apr 27	1/2	bush	meal	1.50	5.90
May 3		2 plugs	tobacco	1.50	May 11	14 th	Bacon	35 ^{cts}	5.90
May 11		10 th	flour	2.00	May 25	2 plugs	tobacco	1.50	3.00
May 26		1 pk	Corn	50 ^{cts}	June 7	7 1/2	plug	tobacco	25 ^{cts}
June 7		12 th	Pickle	Port	35 ^{cts}	June 25	2 plugs	tobacco	1.50
July 4		10 th	Pickle	Port	35 ^{cts}	July 18	5 th	Pickle	Port
Aug 11		5 th	Bacon	35 ^{cts}	Aug 17	1 pk	Meal	50 ^{cts}	2.25-
Aug 29		5 th	Bacon	35 ^{cts}	Sept 8	8 th	Pickle	Port	35 ^{cts}
June 22		to S. H. H.	1 woman	Hat	4.00	1 veil	2.00	1 pr	Shoes
Sept 25		5 th	Bacon	35 ^{cts}	Sept 28	1/2	pk	Meal	1.30
Oct 6		5 th	Bacon	35 ^{cts}	8 th	1 pr	Boots	6.00	7.75-
Oct 20		5 th	Port	1/2	pr	Meal		Nov 1	5 th
Nov 12		1 pr	Shoes	3.50	S. H.	Pickle	Port		5.25-

Paid to 86.33 1/2

91.52 1/2
 3.66
 89.86 1/2
 29.30
 60.56 1/2

Ellick

		\$	cts
Jan 10	1 Skillet - 2.25 - 1/2 plug tobacco 37 1/2	2.62 1/2	
Mar 12	2 plugs tobacco 1.50. 7 th Bacon 35 ^{cts} . 1 Bottle whiskey 2.00	5.95	
Feb 12	1 1/2 th Bacon 35 ^{cts} . Mar 18 1 Bottle whiskey 2.00	5.67 1/2	
Mar 26	8 1/2 th Bacon 35 ^{cts} . 27 th 1 plug tobacco 75	2.97 1/2	
April 2	1 Bottle whiskey 2.00. April 15 - 5 th Bacon 35 ^{cts} pr #	4.10	
May 7+8	Lost. May 9 12 th flour 20 ^{cts} pr #. 20 th 1 Hat 2.00	4.75	
Jun 22	4 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cts} . July 2 1 plug tobacco - 75 ^{cts}	2.15	
July 13	1 pk meal 50 ^{cts} . 13 th 3 th flour 20 ^{cts} . 19 th 3 th Pickle Pork 35	2.15	
.. 26	3 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cts} pr # Aug 1 1 pk meal 50	1.65	
Aug 9	1 pk meal 50. 29 th 3 th Bacon 35 ^{cts} pr #	1.65	
	to Harnett 1 th Sugar 50 ^{cts} . 1 th Coffee 60 ^{cts} . Tin Cup. 30 ^{cts}		
July 4	to S. H. H. 1 pr show 5.00 1 Hoop 2.50 Molasses 50	8.00	
Sept 26	5 th Bacon 35 ^{cts} . 27 th 1/2 pk meal	2.00	
Oct 17	1/2 pk meal 25	25	

Credit 1.25

Dues me 16.35
5-0
15.85

\$ 43.82

Charley

\$ 00

Jan 10	1 Skillet - 2.25 - 1/2 plug tobacco 3 1/2 ^{cts}	2.62 1/2
" 15	1 1/2 plugs tobacco 1.12 1/2 2 plug tobacco 1.50	2.62 1/2
Mar 14	1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cts} Feb 5 - 18 th Bacon 35 ^{cts}	7.05
Feb 22	12 th Bacon 35 ^{cts} Feb 28 12 th Bacon 35 ^{cts}	8.40
Mar 26	1 gal whiskey 8.00. 2 plugs tobacco 1.50	9.50
Mar 27	2 plug tobacco 1.50. Mar 1 Bottle whiskey 2.00	3.50
Apr 2	1 Bottle whiskey 1 Bottle 2.00 Apr 3 10 th Bacon 35 ^{cts}	5.50
" 7	3 plug tobacco 1.50. 15 th 12 th Bacon 35 ^{cts}	5.70
Apr 16	1/2 Bush Peas 1.50 May 5 - 2 plugs tobacco 1.00	2.50
May 7.8 & 9	lost May 20 1 plug tobacco 50	1.02 1/2
Jun 1	2 1/2 th Bacon 35 ^{cts} Jun 2 1 plug tobacco 50	1.37 1/2
" 7	4 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cts} 11 th 6 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cts}	4.50
Jun 15	all 19 & 20 lost. Jun 25 - 1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cts}	1.27 1/2
Jun 25	8 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cts} Jun 27. 1 PK meal 50	3.30
July 11-12-13-14-15-17-18-19-20-21	lost	1.75-
July 22	1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cts} Aug 9. 3 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cts}	1.80
Aug 9	1 PK meal 50. 18 th 4 th Bacon 35 ^{cts}	1.90
Aug 25	lost - 22 - 23 - 24 lost. 29 th 5 th Bacon 35 ^{cts}	2.45-
Aug 31	4 th flour 25 ^{cts} Sept 8 7 th Pickle Pork, 1 PK meal 50	3.95-
Sept 24	5 th Bacon 35 ^{cts} Oct 17 6 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cts}	4.55-
July 4	5. H&K 1 pr skew 4.00 1 Hat - 1.75 3 yrd Domestic 75	6.50
	1 yrd Homespun 50 1 Bottle castor oil 75 1 st Sugar 25	1.50
Sept 26	1 PK meal 50 Oct 2 1 PK meal 50	1.00
Oct 2	5 th Bacon 35 ^{cts} Oct 20 5 th Pickle Pork	4.55
Nov 1	5 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cts} 8 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cts}	4.00
Brought over \$ 53.65 1/2		
\$ 415.90		\$ 106.77

John Hillman

Jan 1	1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cs}	3 rd 1 plug tobacco 75 ⁻	1.00
Mar 12	1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cs}	15 th Bacon 35 ^{cs}	5.42 ^{1/2}
Jan 28	12 th Pork 10 ^{cs}	Feb 12 th 13 th Bacon 35 ^{cs}	6.65
Mar 24	1/2 gal whiskey 4.00	Apr 2 12 th Bacon 35 ^{cs}	8.20
Apr 8	1 plug tobacco 50	Apr 29 1 plug tobacco 50	1.00
May 2	2 1/2 \$ in gold	50 in green Back	3.00
May 23	1 plug tobacco 50 ^{cs}	June 2 1 plug tobacco 50	1.00
Jan 2	12 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cs}	22 nd 11 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cs}	8.05
May 4	1 pk meal 50 ^{cs}	July 16 1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cs}	1.25
July 27 & 28	lost by June 28 th	5 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cs}	2.10
July 11	5 th Bacon 35 ^{cs}	17 th 1 pk meal 50 ^{cs}	2.25
July 29	5 th Bacon	Sept 19 5 th Bacon 35 ^{cs}	3.50
June 28	to S. H. & Co 1 Hoop Skirt 2.50	1 pr Show 3.00	5.50
Aug 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25	lost without - Rations.		3.00
Oct 8	1/2 pk meal	Oct 11 th 5 th Bacon	2.00
Credit 30 2 1/2		59.02 1/2	54.22 1/2
		Cotton	

Harry

Feb 19	5 plugs tobacco 75 ^{cts}	10 plugs tobacco 75 ^{cts}	11.25
Feb 14	1 Skirt 2.25	Mar 4 1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cts}	3.00
April 14	3 plugs tobacco 50 ^{cts}	1 plug tobacco 50 ^{cts}	2.00
April 22	1 plug tobacco 50	Mar 20 6 yrd Calico 50 ^{cts}	2.30
May 27	1 dollar in Specie	June 25 1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cts}	1.75
June 25	1 dime to buy album	July 12 1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cts}	.85
July 14	1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cts}	18 2 plugs tobacco 1.50	2.25
July 25	1/2 plug tobacco 37 ^{cts}	28 1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cts}	1.12
July 31	1/2 plug tobacco 37 ^{cts}	Aug 16 2 plugs tobacco 1.50	1.87
Sept 1	2 plugs tobacco 1.50	50 1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cts}	2.25
Aug 8	1 pr Shoes 3.00	to acct with S H & K	3.00
June 22	1 Hickory shirt 1.50	1 pr shoes 3.00	4.50
	1 head Dress 50	10 yds Muslin 4/-	5.50
July 5	10 Pink Canvas 7.50	tobacco 1.70	8 yrd Calico 2.00
	6 yd Domestic 1.50	1 pr shoes 5.00	15.70
			57.05

Henry

June 15	1/2 plug tobacco 37 ^{cts}	1 Bottle Whiskey 2.00	2.37
July 5	lost	July 7 3 yrd Cassimere 2.25	1 pr Socks 50
	1 cat Huntsey 50	1 Blk Hat 0.50	1 Pipe 50
June 11	to S H & K	1 pr Shoes 3.00	Oct 8 1 pr Boots 6.50
Sept 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15	lost		1.50
Oct 8	1 Hickory shirt 2.00		

Credit 1.25

2092 1/2
 2362 1/2

 270
 125

 395
 150

 545

265
 125

 490

209 1/2
 236 1/2

 445

Archio

Jan 10	1 Sifter 60 ^{cs} 1 Skillet 2.25-	2.85
Jan 12	2 plugs tobacco 750. 12 ^{1/2} 1/2 plug tobacco 37 1/2	1.87 1/2
Jan 25	3 1/2 plugs tobacco 2.62 1/2. Feb 15 Paid me 25 ^{cs}	2.87 1/2
Feb 25	1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cs} . Feb 28 2 plugs tobacco 1.50	2.25
Mar 11	2 plug tobacco 1.50. Mar 13 ^{1/2} 8 1/2 th Bacon 35 ^{cs}	4.47 1/2
Mar 14	1 qt whiskey 2.00. 2 plugs tobacco 1.50	3.50
Jan 28	4 th Pork 10 ^{cs} 40 ^{cs} Feb 3 th 5 th Bacon 35 ^{cs} 1.75	2.15
Feb 19	9 1/2 th Bacon 35 ^{cs} Feb 28 9 th Bacon 35 ^{cs}	6.47 1/2
Jan 14	1/2 Bush meal 1.02 1/2. Mar 24 th 1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cs}	1.87 1/2
Mar 25	1 Bottle whiskey 2.00. Mar 26 7 th Bacon 35 ^{cs}	4.45
Jan 31	2 plugs tobacco 1.50. April 1 1 qt whiskey 2.00	3.50
April 3	1 qt whiskey 2.00 8 th 2 plugs tobacco 1.50	3.50
April 15	6 1/2 th Bacon 35 ^{cs} . 28 th 6 1/2 th Bacon 35 ^{cs}	4.45
Jan 27	1/2 Bush meal 1.12 1/2. May 9 13 1/2 th flour 20 ^{cs}	3.82 1/2
May 11	7 th Bacon 35 ^{cs} . May 20 7 th Bacon 35 ^{cs}	4.50
Jan 23	2 plugs tobacco 1.00 June 22 5 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cs}	2.75
June 24	1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cs} 30 th 1 plug tobacco 75-	1.50
July 10	1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cs} . 13 th 1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cs}	1.50
1/2 July 26,	all 24 lost July 30 th 1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cs}	1.01
Aug 2	3 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cs} . Aug 11 1 pt meal .50	1.51
Jan 16	1 plug tobacco 1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cs}	.75
Jan 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25:	lost Aug 29 1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cs}	1.80
Aug 30	3 th Bacon 35 ^{cs} 1 paper Noodles 15. Cash 30 ^{cs}	1.50
July 4	12 yrd Calico 3.00. 1 Pocket Knife 1.00. 2 Spools Thread 30 ^{cs}	4.30
	3 yrd Casimer 2.25 ^{cs} Jan 23 1 p. ^{from} man 1.00 1 woman 3.00	9.25
Sept 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22.	Lost Sept 26 3 th Bacon 35-	3.30

David Brown

88

Jan 10	1 plug tobacco 75-	1 pr Shaw 3.50	4.25
Feb 5	5# Bacon 35 ^{cts}	Mar 15 th 1/2# Bacon 35 ^{cts}	2.25
Mar 24	1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cts}	1 pr Pants 2.00	2.75
Apr 9	1 plug tobacco 50-	1/2 Bush Peas 1.25	1.75
June 8-9	Lost - June 25	1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cts}	
		Aug 17 th 1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cts}	1.85
Oct 17	7 th Domestic 2.50	1 pr Boots 6.80	9.30
	Sheet 25-		23.25

23.25
 1.85
 1.25

 26.27 1/2
 20

 26.27 1/2
 23.25

 3.02 1/2

Washington

\$ 06

Feb 10	1 qt whiskey 250	1 plug tobacco 50 ^{cs}	3.00
Mar 26	6 th Bacon 35 ^{cs}	April 15 7 1/2 th Bacon 35 ^{cs}	4.72 1/2
April 16	1/2 Bush Meal 80 2 1/2	24 th 1 plug tobacco 50 ^{cs}	1.62 1/2
May 20	6 th Bacon 33 ^{cs}	June 13 th 1 pr shoes 3.00	1/2 Bush meal 11 1/2
June 22	6 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cs}	June 30 1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cs}	2.85
July 4	1 pk Meal 56	July 20 th 3 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cs}	1.61
July 30	1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cs}	Aug 2 4 th Pickle Pork 35 ^{cs}	2.15
Aug 4	1 pk Meal 58 ^{cs}	18 th 4 th Bacon 35 ^{cs}	Sept 1, 3, 4 lost - 2.42 1/2
Aug	(27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 1 st Sept) ^{no rations} lost	Sept 8, 10, 11, 12 Rations 4 day	6.00
Sept 27	7 th Bacon	Oct 3 rd 1/2 pk Meal	2.70
Oct 20	5 th Pork & 1/2 pk Meal	5 th Pickle Pork 35	2.00
Nov 7	1/2 pk Meal 1/2	1/2 pk Meal	.50
Dec 1	1/2 pk Meal	Credited \$1.25	339.72
	Credit 1.25		

Acct

\$ | cts

June 10 th 11 lost	July 9, 10, 11, 12, 13 lost	Aug 13 4 th Bacon 85 ^{cts}	2.62 ^{1/2}
Sept 13	14, 15, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, lost	Meat Ration meal 3 days	2 07 ^{1/2}
June 13	Attendance on India		<u>5.60</u>
	Credit - 125 ^{cts}		<u>5.00</u>
		23.52 ^{1/2}	
		10.50	
		<u>12.92^{1/2}</u>	
		7.00	also
		6.72^{1/2}	
		<u>5.92^{1/2}</u>	

March 29	1 qt Whiskey 2.00	Fayette	2.40
July 22	1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cts}	Ben	1.25
Sept 29	4 th Bacon 35 ^{cts}	Ben	5.85

Noses

Feb 20 1 qt whiskey 2.00. Mar 5 15# Bacon 35^{cts} 7.25-
 Feb 12 15# Bacon 35^{cts}. Mar 18th 1 qt whiskey 2.00 7.25-
 April 8 8# Bacon 35^{cts} May 28 2 plugs tobacco 1.00 2.80
 April 13 1 plug tobacco 75^{cts} July 13, 14, 16 Lost - 11, 12, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21 Lost 3.75-
 Aug 1/2 8, 9, 7, 10 Cow hunting .70 + 75-

July 4 To S. H. K 10 yd Calico 2.50 14 Bonnetings 7.00 7 Cottonade 3.50 13.00
 3 yd Bl domestick 1.20 Oct 3rd 6# Bacon 35-

Oct 24 5# Pork

29.75^{-c}
 1.50^{-c}
 1.35^{-p}
 .55^{-H}

 \$33.25⁻
 4.50 Dr Bill

 \$37.75⁻

50.95
~~25.75~~
 32.60

Feb 20 Load spelling Books 1.00. 1 qt whiskey 2.00 3.00
 Mar 2 1 plug tobacco 50

 \$4.25-

L Jim

8 ct
2.75
2.00
5.75

Feb 10 1 plug tobacco 75^{cs} 1 Bottle whiskey 2.00
April 27 2 plugs tobacco 1.50 1 Bottle whiskey 1.00

~~Feb 20 6 yds osnaburgs ^{75^{cs}} 2.50 Mar 28 1 qt whiskey 2.00
Mar 28 5^{lb} flour 12^{cts} 60^{cs}~~

~~6.50
6.00~~

Long Peter

Feb 20 2 plugs tobacco 1.50 1 qt whiskey 2.00
Mar 18 1 qt whiskey 2.00 2 plug tobacco 1.50
Mar 22 1 Bottle whiskey 2.00 1 plug tobacco 75^{cs}
" 27 1 Bottle whiskey 2.00 Mar 29 11^{lb} flour 12^{cts}
April 1 1 plug tobacco 75^{cs} 3rd 1 Bottle whiskey 2.00
April 27 1 plug tobacco 50

+
3.50
3.50
2.75
3.32
2.75
.50
20.40

George

8 00

Feb 20	1 plug tobacco 50 ^{cs}	Mar 11 th	2 plugs tobacco 1.50	2.00
Mar 13	1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cs} , 1 qt whiskey 2.00			2.75
Mar 28	3 yds ashatungs 75 ^{cs} pr yd	Apr 2	2 plugs tobacco 1.00	3.15
				<u>8.87</u>

Bob Murphy

Feb 10	1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cs} , 1 qt whiskey 2.00	2.75
Mar 11	1 qt whiskey 2.00, 1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cs}	2.75
Mar 18	1 st Sugar 50 ^{cs} , 1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cs} , 1 Bottle whiskey 2.00	3.25
Mar 28	1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cs} , 10 yds ashatungs 75 ^{cs} pr yd	8.25
Mar 28	1 Bottle whiskey 2.00, 11 th flour 12 ^{cs}	3.32
May 6	5 th Salt 50 ^{cs} , June 22 1 plug tobacco 75 ^{cs} , 1 Bottle whiskey 2.00	3.25
		<u>32.96</u>

		8
July 2 nd	one day to all hands 17 ^{cts} each	2.80
" 7	one day to all hands	2.80
" 14	one day to all hands	2.80
" 20	1/2 day to two mules & hands	1.35
" 28	1/2 day to all hands	1.40
Aug 4	1 day to 7 hands lost at burying 17 ^{cts}	1.22 ^{1/2}
" 11	1/2 day to 9 hands 17 ^{cts}	1.57 ^{1/2}
Aug 9	to loan of mule to old Henry without my knowledge	1.50
Aug 21, 22, 23, 24, 25	lost by Sim ⁺	.87 ^{1/2}
" 21, 22, 23, 24, 25	lost by Beten \$2.70	.87 ^{1/2}
" 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 27	lost by Fayette ⁺	1.05
Aug 27	lost by 6 hands, Sept 1 1/2 day to all hands	3.85
" 28	to 6 hands lost 1/2 day.	1.05
Sept 8	1/2 day to all hands. 1/2 15 & 22 to all hands	4.20
Aug 11, 18, 25	lost by all hands —	4.20
Sept 29	8 th Bacon	2.95 ^{1/2}
" 29	1/2 day lost by all hands	1.40
Oct 6	1/2 day to all hands Oct 13 1/2 day to all hands	2.80
Oct 20	1/2 day to all hands, 27 th 1/2 day to all	2.80
Nov 3	1/2 day to all Nov 12 1 pr shoes 4.00	5.40
		\$44.10 ^{1/2}
		4.00
		40.10 ^{1/2}
		3.50
		35.65 ^{1/2}

Jacob

Feb 10 1 Skillet 2.25. 1 bottle whiskey 2.00
Mar 16 1 qt whiskey for Pindy 2.00 1 plug tobacco 75-

4.25
38
2.75
20
\$7.56

Jack

Feb 10 1 Skillet 2.00. 1 qt whiskey 2.00. 1 qt ^{plug} whiskey 2.00
Mar 5 Russell 1 qt whiskey 2.00. 9th 2 plugs tobacco 1.00
Mar 9 12th flour 1.44
Redding 1/2 gal whiskey 4.00

6.50
3.30
1.44
4.44
4.38

Pete & Lucien

Feb 10	1 Bottle whiskey 2.00	Pete 1 Bottle 1.00	\$ 3.00
" 20	Lucien 1 Bottle whiskey 2.00		2.00
Mar 23	Ernan 1 Bottle whiskey 2.00	Lucien 1 Bottle 2.00	4.00
Mar 29	Pete 1/2 gal whiskey 4.00		4.00
" 30	1 1/2 gals whiskey 3.00	Lucien 1 Bottle 2.00	5.00
April 3	Lucien 1 play traces .75	15 th play 50	1.25
July 22	Pete 1 play traces 75		.75
	P		
		Pete 11.00	
		L 6.50	
		E 2.25	
Mar 25	Wash Almy 1 play traces .75		
Mar 31	Kathar 1 Bottle whiskey 2.00	April 1 play traces 75	2.75
Apr 1	1 qt whiskey 2.00	July 26 1 play traces 75	2.75
.10	1 Bottle whiskey 2.00	1 Bottle whiskey 2.00	4.00
			<u>25.75</u>

Bob Hargrove

Apr 1	1 qt whiskey 2.00.	2 plups tobacco 7.50	8.50
Sept 29	Eurech 16 th	Bacon 35 ^{ct}	5.60
Sept 30	Isaac 25 th	Bacon 36 ^{ct}	\$2.00 cash in gold
Nov 15	24 th	Bacon 30 ^{ct}	#7.35 - Paid \$2.00
			\$18.10

Oct 13 Webb 1/2 gal whiskey. Harris 1/2 gal whiskey

Archive

Sept 27	1/2 pk Meal 25	- 1/2 pk Meal 25	5# Bacon 36	2.37
Oct 8	1 lb Buns 6.00	Oct 26	4# Pickle Pork	7.20
Nov 7	5 1/4# Pickle Pork 85	Nov 12	5# Pickle Pork	3.88
Nov 12	1/2 pk Meal to Harriet on cake soap 2.50			.50
	Credit 125.	1 BBL Corn Credit 6.75		2.50
		28.50		95.85 1/2
		1.50		64.02
		6.75		\$64.12 1/2
		31.75		
		95.85 1/2		
		\$64.12		

Jan 14th 1857 Jerry on Spinning wheel

\$1.00

Jan 27 1867 Isaac
 Feb 1 \$1.50 Loans 1 pk meal 50^{cts} Bacon 20^{cts} \$1.50
 Feb 21 1 pk meal 50^{cts} 6th Bacon 20^{cts}
 Feb 11 6th Bacon 1/2 bush meal
 Feb 16 6th Bacon 1/2 bush meal Feb 23 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
 Feb 26 1/2 plug tobacco 50^{cts}
 Mar 2nd 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
 Mar 9 6th Pork 18th meal Mar 11 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
 Mar 22 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
 Mar 30 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
 April 6 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal April 13 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
 April 20 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal April 27 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
 May 5 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal May 11 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
 May 18 6th Bacon 1/2 bush meal May 25 5th Pork 1/2 bush meal
 May 23 1 plug tobacco 50^{cts}
 June 1 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal June 8 6th Bacon 1/2 bush meal
 June 15 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal June 14th 1 plug tobacco 50^{cts}
 June 24 Acct Spiller \$4.00 June 26 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
 June 29 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal June 29 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
 July 6 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal July 13 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
 July 27 Arica to Spiller \$10.00 July 16 1 plug tobacco
 July 21 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal July 27 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
 Aug 3 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal Aug 7 1/2 Cotton Cards \$1.50
 Aug 10 4th Pork 1/2 bush meal Aug 17 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
 Aug 24 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal Aug 31 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
 Sept 7 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal Sept 14 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
 Sept 21 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal Sept 28 2th Pork 3rd Bacon 1/2 bush meal
 Oct 5 6th Bacon 1/2 bush meal Oct 12 6th Bacon 1/2 bush meal

1867 Oliver

Jan 27 1 pk meal 50^{cts} 5[#] Bacon 20^{cts} # \$1.50

Feb 4 1/2 bush Rais 1/2 bush meal 6[#] Bacon

Feb 11 6[#] Bacon 1/2 bush meal

Feb 16 5[#] Bacon 1/2 bush meal

Feb 23 6[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal

Mar 2 6[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal

Mar 8 6[#] Pork 169^{cts} meal Mar 11 8[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal

Mar 22 7[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal

Mar 30 3 1/2[#] Pork 1 pk meal Apr 6 3[#] Pork 1 pk meal

Apr 13 3[#] Pork 1 pk meal

Apr 20 3[#] Pork 1 pk meal Apr 27 3[#] Pork 1 pk meal

May 5 6[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal. 50^{cts} borrowed money

May 11 6[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal May 18 4 1/2[#] Bacon 1/2 bush

May 25 5[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal 1 plug tobacco 5^{cts}

June 1 6[#] Pork ~~1/2 bush meal~~ 1/2 bush meal

June 7 1 plug tobacco June 8 5 1/2[#] Bacon 1/2 bush meal

June 15 6[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal June 23 6[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal

June 29 6[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal July 6 6[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal

July 5 5 1/2^{cts} lost July 5 account 80^{cts} 8/5^{cts}

July 13 6[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal Feb 28 act Spiller \$28.00

Apr 1st act Spiller 7^{cts} \$5.50 July 21 5 1/2[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal

act Spiller lost Bill July 27 6[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal

July 27 6[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal

July 27 6[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal

July 27 6[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal 1 Bottle Smokers \$1.50

July 17 6[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal July 17 6[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal

July 24 6[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal

July 22 1 plug tobacco 40^{cts} 3rd flour 30^{cts} Sept 4 6[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal

Sept 7 6[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal Sept 14 5[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal

1867 Cythia

.85-

- Jan 27 1/2 pk meal 25^{cts} 3rd Bacon 30th 4
- Feb 4 1 pk meal 3rd Bacon 1/2 pk peas
- Feb 11 3rd Bacon 1 pk meal Feb 16 3rd Bacon
1 pk meal Feb 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23 lost
- Feb 23 3rd Pork 1 pk meal 1/2 pk Peas April 1 & 2 lost
- Mar 2 3rd Pork 1 pk meal Mar 11 3rd Pork 1 pk meal
- Mar 22 3rd Pork 1 pk meal
- Mar 30 3rd Pork 1 pk meal April 6 3rd Pork 1 pk meal
- April 13 3rd Pork 1 pk meal April 20 3rd Pork 1 pk meal
- April 27 3rd Pork 1 pk meal May 5 3rd Pork 1 pk meal
- May 7, 8, 9 Lost May 11 3rd Pork 1 pk meal
- May 18 3rd Bacon 1 pk meal May 25 3rd Pork 1 pk meal
- June 1 3rd Pork 1 pk meal June 8th 3rd Bacon 1 pk meal
- June 15 3rd Pork 1 pk meal June 23 3rd Pork 1 pk meal 3rd salt
- June 29 3 1/2 Pork 1 pk meal July 8 3rd Pork 1 pk meal
- July 9, 10 Lost July 13 3rd Pork 1 pk meal
- bucket 60^{cts} July 21 3 1/2 Pork 1 pk meal
- July 27 3rd Pork 1 pk meal Aug 3 3rd Pork 1 pk meal
- Aug 10 3rd Pork 1 pk meal Aug 8, 9, 10th Lost
- July 17 3rd Pork 1 pk meal Stuffed Aug 21st

Oct 15th 3rd Pork

- Sept 16 3rd Pork 1/2 bush meal
- Sept 21 3rd Pork 1/2 bush meal Sept 28 2nd Pork 3 1/2 Bacon 1/2 bush
- Oct 12th 6th Bacon 1/2 bush meal
- Oct 5th 5 1/2th Bacon 1/2 bush meal fact with Spiller 4.90

1867 Henry L

Jan 27 8th Bacon 2^{co} ^{pr} 1/2 pt meal 50^{co} \$2.10

Jan 28 1 pr Shoes for Mary 2.00, 2 gals Peas 40^{ct}

Jan 30 or 31 Lost by Mary

Feb 4 2 Pk meal 2 bush 11th Bacon

Feb 9 1 plug tobacco 73th 8 1/2th Bacon 1/2 bush 1 qt meal

Feb 17 Mary 1 pr carrying 33.00 4 1/2th Bacon 1/2 bush meal

Feb 22 wth 1 23 18th Pork 8 pks meal

Feb 28 1/2 pt Peas Henry 1/2 plug tobacco 50^{ct}

Mar 2 9th Pork 2 1/2 pks meal

Mar 9 9th Pork 1/2 bush 1/2 pt meal 1 plug tobacco

Mar 11 1 pr Shaw Cost \$3.00 Mar 11 8th Pork 24 9th Meal

Mar 22 9th Pork 1/2 bush 4 1/2 pt meal

Mar 30 8th Pork 24 9th meal April 6 8th Pork 2 1/2 pks meal

Apr 13 8th Pork 2 1/2 pks meal April 27th 9th Pork 2 1/2 pks meal

Apr 20 8th Pork 2 1/2 pks meal

Apr 25 9th Pork 2 1/2 pks meal 1 pr Shoes \$5.00

May 10 1 pr pants \$2.25 May 11th 8th Pork 1/2 bush meal

May 18 8th Bacon 2 1/2 pks meal May 25 7th Pork 2 1/2 pks meal

May 23 1 plug tobacco 50^{ct} June 1 8th Pork 2 1/2 pks meal

June 1 Lost by Mary 1 plug tobacco June 7th

June 8 7th Bacon 2 1/2 pks meal June 15th 8th Pork 2 1/2 pks meal

June 23 8th Pork 2 1/2 pks meal June 24 1/2 plug tobacco 25^{ct}

June 24 Act with Spiller \$10.70 June 24 8th Pork 2 1/2 pks meal

June 28 Lost by Mary July 6 8th Pork 2 1/2 pks meal

July 5 Mary 4 pr domestic 1.40 July 13 8th Pork 1 1/2 2 1/2 pks meal

July 15 1 shirt pr pants \$14.00 July 16 Act Spiller ~~\$3.15~~

July 27 Act Spiller \$8.00

July 27 Act Spiller Mary \$10.00 May 27th to Cash for Mary \$12.57

July 15 1 pr domestic 2.40 July 18th Borrowed \$2.00

1867 @ W. Henry

Jan 27 11[#] Bacon 20^{cts} pr # 1/2 bush meal 100 \$3.20

Feb 4 3 pk. meal 12[#] Bacon

Feb 11 8[#] Bacon 1/2 bush & 2 pk. meal

Feb 19 4 1/2 Bacon 1/2 bush meal Mar 2 13[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal

Feb 23 7 1/4 Pork 1/2 bush meal

Mar 9 1 plug tobacco 15[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal

Mar 11 8 1/2[#] Pork 2 1/2 pk. meal

Mar 22 8[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal

Mar 30 9[#] Pork 2 1/2 pk. meal

April 6 8[#] Pork 2 1/2 pk. meal April 13 8 1/2[#] Pork 1/2 bush

April 20 8[#] Pork 2 1/2 pk. meal April 27 8[#] Pork 2 1/2 pk. meal

May 5 8[#] Pork 2 1/2 pk. meal May 9 1/2 plug tobacco

May 11 8[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal May 25 8[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal

May 18 8[#] Bacon 1/2 bush meal

1/2 plug tobacco 25^{cts}

June 1 8[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal 1 plug tobacco

June 8 8[#] Bacon 1/2 bush meal

June 15 8[#] Pork 2 1/2 pk. meal June 23 8[#] Pork 2 1/2 pk. meal

June 24 8[#] Pork 2 1/2 pk. meal July 6 8[#] Pork 1/2 bush

May 11 account D & K \$2.00 July 5 1 pr shov 1 Belt Euline 4.00

July 5 1 pr woman 2.00 July 13 8[#] Pork 2 1/2 pk. meal

Feb 16 left with Spiller & K \$6.00 Mar 16 act Spiller \$4.00

May 27 act Spiller \$4.10 June 13 to Spiller ~~6.10~~ 6.10

May 11 act Spiller \$2.00 July 16 1 plug tobacco

July 27 8[#] Pork 2 1/2 pk. meal 3 days work to Euline to date

Aug 3 8[#] Pork 2 1/2 pk. meal 1/2 plug tobacco

Aug 7 act Spiller \$2.25 - Aug 10 8[#] Pork 2 1/2 pk. meal 1/2 plug tobacco 50^{cts}

1867 N. York

- Jan 26 8th Bacon 20th 1/2 pk meal 25
- Feb 5 8th Bacon Feb 9th 4th Bacon 1 pk meal
- Feb 19 1/2 bush meal 6th Bacon
- Feb 21 1/2 bush meal Feb 23 6th Pork 1 pk meal
- Mar 2 6th Pork 1 pk meal Mar 9 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
- Mar 11 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
- Mar 22 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal Mar 30 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
- Apr 6 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal Apr 13 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
- Apr 20 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal Apr 27 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
- May 5 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
- May 11 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
- May 18 3rd Pork 3rd Bacon 1/2 bush meal May 25 5th Pork 1/2 bush meal
- June 1 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal June 8 5th Pork 1/2 bush meal
- June 8 7th flour June 10 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
- June 23 5th Pork 1/2 bush meal June 29 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
- July 6 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal July 13 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
- July 19 Act with Spiller & Co \$12.50
- July 21 5th Pork 1/2 bush meal July 27 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
- July 3 5th Pork 1/2 bush meal 4th Salt Aug 10 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
- Aug 17 4 1/2th Pork 1/2 bush meal Aug 24 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal
- Sept 7 6th Pork 1/2 bush meal Sept 14 5th Pork 1/2 bush meal
- Sept 21 5th Pork 1/2 bush meal Sept 28 4 1/2th Pork 2nd Bacon 1/2 bush meal
- Oct 5 5th Bacon 1/2 bush meal Oct 12 5th Bacon 1/2 bush meal
- Oct 19 5th Bacon 1/2 bush meal Oct 27 5th Pork 1/2 bush meal
- Nov 5 12th Beef 8th 1/2 bush meal Nov 8 5th Bacon 1/2 bush meal
- Nov 23 9th Beef 1/2 bush meal 8th Salt

Cotton packing \$2.32

1/2 Oct 1st lost .45

Cotton packing 88^{cts} 1/2 day lost - 44^{cts} Cotton packing .57

1867 Sam Clark

- Jan 29 39th Bacon 2 bush Meal
- Jan 30th 2nd Bacon Feb 7th Bacon hand
- Feb 4 Hands 11th Bacon 3 pk meal
- Feb 5 1/2 bush Peas Feb 9 Sam one bush Corn
- Feb 11th Hands one half bush meal 11th Bacon
- Feb 9 Sam 1/2 plug tobacco Feb 1 plug tobacco
- Feb 14 1/2 bush meal Feb 16 1/2 bush Corn
- Feb 16 Hands 11th Bacon 3 pk meal
- Feb 16 12th Bacon Feb 23 12th Pork 1 bush meal
- Feb 21 1 plug tobacco Hands 10th Pork 1/2 bush meal
- Feb 25 1/2 bush Peas 2 pr Shovs for Hands \$5.00
- Feb 28 1/2 plug tobacco 30th Hands 1 pk meal
- Mar 2 12th Pork 3 pk meal (Hands) Sam 13th Pork
- Mar 2 Sam 1 plug tobacco
- Mar 9 10th Pork 2 bush meal Sam 1 bush meal
- Mar 9 Hands 9th Pork 1/2 bush meal 1 pk meal
- Mar 22 1 bush Corn 12th Pork Sam
- Mar 11 Sam Clark 1 plug tobacco
- Hands 12th Pork 3 pk meal 1 plug tobacco
- Mar 22 Hands 10th Pork 3 pk meal
- Mar 30 12th Pork 1 bush Corn 1 plug tobacco
- Mar 30 Hand 10th Pork 3 pk meal 1 plug tobacco
- April 6 12th Pork 1 bush Corn Hands 9th Pork 3 pk meal
- April 6 3rd Pork 1 pk meal April 10 4th Salt ~~plug tobacco~~
- April 10 1 plug tobacco 100 4th Salt April 13 12th Pork 1 bush corn
- Hands 9th Pork 3 pk meal 1 pk meal 3rd Pork
- Sam Clark 6th Pork 1 bush meal Hands 9th Pork 3 pk meal

Kenny

Feb 4

1 pk meal 3# Bacon 1/2 pk meat

Feb 11

3# Bacon 1 pk meal Feb 8 1 pk meal \$3.00

Feb 16

3# Bacon 1/2 pk meal Feb 23 3# Pork 1 pk meal

Mar 2

3# Pork 1 pk meal Mar 9 1 pk meal 3# Pork

Mar 11

3# Pork 1 pk meal Mar 22 3# Pork 1 pk meal

Mar 30

3# Pork 1 pk meal April 6 3# Pork 1 pk meal

Sam Clark

April 18 1 plug tobacco

April 27

12# Pork 1 bush corn 1 pk meal 3# Pork

May 27

Hands 9# Pork 3 pk meal April 28 1 plug tobacco \$1.50

May 5

15# Pork 1/2 bush corn 3# Pork 1 pk meal 6# Salt

May 5

Hands 9# Pork 3 pk meal 6# Salt

1 plug tobacco to Sam \$1.00 in 10. 1 gal meal 1# Pork

May 11

10# Pork 1 bush corn 1 plug tobacco

Hand 9# Pork 3 pk meal 3# Pork 1 pk meal

May 12

Girls one plug tobacco \$1.00 2 1/2# Pork 9# Bacon 1 bush corn

May 18

1/2 plug to Sam 1/2 plug to girls 9# Pork 3 pk meal

May 25

12# Pork 1 bush corn 1 1/2 plugs tobacco 6# Salt

June 1

Girls 9# Pork 3 pk meal

June 1

13# Pork 1 bus corn girls 9# Pork 3 pk meal

June 31

9 gals 3 plugs tobacco June 6 1/2 Sam one plug tobacco

June 3

to acc with old man Spiller for gals \$13.00

June 6

Sam 15# Pork 1 bush corn. Gals 9# Pork 3 pk meal

June 15

12# Pork 1/2 bush 1 pk corn Sam 9# Pork gals 3 pk meal

June 15

Sam 1 plug tobacco 23 June 23 Sam 1 plug tobacco

June 23

12# Pork 1 bush corn. Gals 9# Pork 3 pk meal

June 23

1 pk meal 3# Pork Sam June 25 1 1/2 plugs tobacco

June 29

15# Pork 1 bush 1 pk corn girls 9# Pork 3 pk meal

Cash

- Feb 2 ~~1/2 bush meal~~ 1/2 bush meal 6# Bacon
- Feb 11 8# Bacon 1/2 bush meal 1/2 bush Peas
- Feb 16 5# Bacon 1/2 bush meal Feb 23 7 1/4# Pork 1/2 bush
- Feb 28 1/2 plug Titaced 50^{cts} Mar 2 13# Pork 1/2 bush meal
- Mar 9 15# Pork 1/2 bush meal
- Mar 11 8 1/2# Pork 1/2 bush meal 49^{cts}
- Mar 22 8# Pork 1/2 bush meal
- Mar 30 9# Pork 1/2 bush meal April 7# Pork 1/2 bush meal
- April 13 8# Pork 1/2 bush meal
- April 20 8# Pork 1/2 bush meal April 27 8# Pork 1/2 bush meal
- May 5 9# Pork 2 1/2 pks meal
- April 27 25^{cts} in cash May 7 1/2 plug Titaced
- May 11 8# Pork 1/2 bush meal May 25 6# Pork 1/2 bush meal
- May 18 5# Bacon 1/2 bush meal May 30 8 pks meal
- May 23 1 plug Titaced 50^{cts} May 30 8 pks meal
- June 1 7# Pork 2 1/2 pks meal June 7 1/2 plug Titaced 50^{cts}
- June 7 8 1/2# Pork 2 1/2 pks meal June 8 7# Bacon 1/2 bush meal
- June 15 7# Pork 2 1/2 pks meal June 23 7 1/2# Pork 2 1/2 pks meal
- June 24 8# Pork 2 1/2 pks meal July 6 7# Pork 2 1/2 pks meal
- July 13 7 1/2# Pork 2 1/2 pks meal July 21 8# Pork 2 1/2 pks meal
- July 27 7# Pork 2 1/2 pks meal July 29 3 cost
- Aug 2 Order to Spicers \$12.00 Aug 10 8# Pork 1 pks meal
- July 17 8# Pork 2 1/2 pks meal Aug 24 7# Pork 2 1/2 pks meal
- Aug 20 23 Lost by 7# Pork 2 1/2 pks meal Sept 7 8# Pork 1/2 bush meal
- Sept 14 6 1/2# Pork 1/2 bush meal Sept 21 8# Pork 2 1/2 pks meal
- Sept 28 2# Pork 3 1/2# Bacon 2 1/2 pks meal Oct 1 1/2 plug Titaced 50^{cts}
- Oct 5 Allen pecking \$1.68 6 1/2# Bacon 2 1/2 pks meal Borrowed 60^{cts}

Henry Jordan

- ~~Feb 4 1st meal 3rd Bacon 1/2 Bush Pork~~
- Feb 5 15th Bacon & 1/2 bush meal
- Feb 9 8th Bacon 1/2 bush meal
- Feb 16 12th Bacon 3/4 pts meal 1/2 bush Corn
- Feb 26 15th Pork 3/4 pts meal 1/2 bush Pork
- Mar 2 14th Pork 1/2 bush meal
- Mar 9 12th Pork 3/4 pts meal
- Mar 11 12th Pork 3/4 pts meal
- Mar 22 10th Pork 3/4 pts meal
- Mar 30 12th Pork 3/4 pts meal
- Apr 6 12th Pork 3/4 pts meal
- Apr 13 12th Pork 3/4 pts meal
- Apr 20 12th Pork 3/4 pts meal
- Apr 27 12th Pork 3/4 pts meal
- May 5 12th Pork 3/4 pts meal
- 1st Show No 8 8300
- May 11 12th Pork 3/4 pts meal
- May 18 12th Pork 3/4 pts meal
- June 1 8th Pork 2 1/2 pts meal
- June 8 8th Pork 2 1/2 pts meal
- June 15 9th Pork 2 1/2 pts meal
- June 23 8th Pork 2 1/2 pts meal
- June 29 9th Pork 2 1/2 pts meal
- July 6 8th Pork 2 1/2 pts meal
- July 13 8th Pork 2 1/2 pts meal
- July 18th Ad - Spine \$11.00
- July 21 8th Pork 2 1/2 pts meal
- July 27 8 1/2th Pork 2 1/2 pts meal
- Aug 3 8th Pork 2 1/2 pts meal
- Aug 10th 8th Pork 2 1/2 pts meal
- Aug 17 8th Pork 2 1/2 pts meal
- Aug 24 8th Pork 2 1/2 pts meal
- Aug 31 8th Pork 2 1/2 pts meal
- Sept 8th 8th Pork 2 1/2 pts meal
- Sept 14 8th Pork 2 1/2 pts meal
- Sept 21 8th Pork 2 1/2 pts meal
- Oct 5 4th Bacon 8th Beef 2 1/2 pts meal
- Oct 12 8th Bacon 2 1/2 pts meal
- Oct 19 8th Bacon
- Oct 26 8th Pork Nov 6th 8th Bacon

June 4 Jerry 2 plugs tobacco \$1.50

June 18 Employed Webster \$8.00 per month

June 23 1/2 plug tobacco June 23 3rd Pork 1 pk meal

June 24 Ben 1 plug tobacco 50^{cts}

June 26th George 1 plug tobacco

June 29 George 3rd Pork 1 pk meal

June 29th 1 plug tobacco

July 6 3rd Pork 1 pk meal Mc 3rd Pork 1 pk meal

July 5 1st show Jerry 3.00 2nd pork extra 30^{cts}

July 13 3rd Pork 1 pk meal 12 13 lost - 1/2 15th lost - 15^{cts} 16th lost

July 21 George 3rd Pork 1 pk meal July 23rd George 1 plug tobacco

Sam Clark & girls

- July 6 10[#] Pork 3 pks meal Sam 26[#] Pork 2 bus corn
- July 6 12^{1/2} Salt 5 plug tobacco
- July 12 to two hands one day
- July 13 Girls 9[#] Pork 3 pks meal July 13 1/2 day to one hand
- July 13 to Girls Oct Spiller \$15.00 July 17 Girls 1 plug tobacco
- July 21 Girls 9[#] Pork 3 pks meal July 22 1/2 plug tobacco
- July 23 Sam Clark 2 plug tobacco 80^{cts} 12[#] Pork 1 1/2 bush corn + 1/2 x 1/2
- July 22+23 to three hands ~~July 27 8[#] Pork 40~~ 2 days to one hand
- July 27 Girls 9[#] Pork 3 pks meal 1 day to three hand in cotton
- July 3 Girls 9[#] Pork 3 pks meal Clark 12[#] Pork 1 bush corn
- July 1 1 plug tobacco Margaret 1 plug tobacco Bates 1/2[#] Pork 1 1/2 gal
- Aug 10 Sam Clark 9[#] Pork 1 bush corn Girls 9[#] Pork 3 pks meal
- Aug 9+10 to him of Joe to pull fodder 50^{cts} per day and rations \$1.50
- Aug 12+13 to him of Jackson 4 hand 4 Rations \$3.50 to him Joe 2 1/2 days \$1.50
- Aug 16 Act with Spiller \$14.00 Sam Clark 13 plug tobacco 40^{cts}
- Aug 17 Girls 9[#] Pork 3 pks meal Aug 20 1 bush corn Sam Clark
- Aug 24 Girls 10[#] Pork 3 pks meal Sam 18[#] Pork 1 bush corn
- Aug 31 Girls 9[#] Pork 3 pks meal Sam 12[#] Pork 1 bush corn
- Aug 26 Lin one plug tobacco 40^{cts} Aug 29 Sam Clark 7 plug tobacco
- Sept 5 Girls 1/2 plug tobacco 20^{cts} Sept 13 Sam 24[#] Pork 1 bush meal
- Sept 13 Sam 1 plug tobacco 40^{cts} 8 1/2[#] Salt 85^{cts}
- Sept 7 Girls 9[#] Pork 3 pks meal Sept 14 2[#] Pork 3 pks meal
- Sept 14 2[#] Pork 3 pks meal 1 plug tobacco 20^{cts}
- Sept 19 3[#] Pork 1 pk meal Sam Sept 26 3[#] Pork 1 pk meal
- Cotton picked 3966^{lbs} = 323.67 Oct 12. Charlot \$6.50
- Oct 5 12[#] Bacon 81^{cts} = Oct 16th 1 plug tobacco 75^{cts}
- Oct 17 Act Spiller \$10.00 Oct 18th 12[#] Bacon (Oct 19 Cotton Charlotte \$3.1)
- Oct 26 10[#] Bacon Oct 24th 2[#] Bacon

Gal Hubbard 4 bushels shay corn
 June 1810 in ~~one bushel~~
 July 10 1825 ~~Gal Hubbard 4 bushels shay corn~~ Tom Chardet 10 mg
 Apr 2nd 1/2 gal whiskey 1 ply tobacco
 L Henry

July 21 8[#] Pork 2 1/2 pks meal 1 Cravat 25^{cts} July 18 sent by Mary
 July 27 8[#] Pork 2 1/2 pks meal 3 days work to Mary for date
 Aug 3 8[#] Pork 2 1/2 pks meal Aug 7 1/2 pr Shaw Mary \$3.00
 Aug 6 7 Lost by Henry 1 ply tobacco Aug 10th 8[#] Pork 2 1/2 pks meal
 Aug 17 8[#] Pork 2 1/2 pks Aug 24 8[#] Pork 2 1/2 pks meal 2nd salt
 Aug 21 22 23 24 Lost by Mary Aug 31 8[#] Pork 2 1/2 pks meal
 Sept 3 Lost by Henry & Mary Sept 5 Mary Act Spiller \$3.15
 Sept 9 George Act Spiller \$10.00 94^{cts} Lost by George
 Sept 9, 10, 11, 12 Lost by Henry 10, 11, 12, 13 4/4 Lost by Mary
 Sept 7 8[#] Pork 1/2 bush meal Sept 14 8[#] Pork 2 1/2 pks meal
 Sept 21 8[#] Pork 2 1/2 pks meal Sept 12th Henry Borrowed 50^{cts}
 Sept 28 2nd salt 1st Bacon 2 1/2 pks meal Sept 28 30. Lost Mary
 Cotton picking Henry \$2.05. Mary \$1.00 George \$1.05 + + +
 Oct 5 7[#] Bacon 2 1/2 pks meal Oct 12 8[#] Bacon 2 1/2 pks
 Oct 11 Act Spiller \$7.90 Oct 14th 1/2 pr Shaw \$3.00
 Oct 19 8[#] Bacon 2 1/2 pks meal Oct 25 George Borrowed \$1.00
 Oct 26 8[#] Bacon 2 1/2 pks meal, 3[#] Bacon 1 pk meal
 Henry Cotton picking \$1.10 Mary \$1.24 George 20^{cts}
 Cotton picking George 47^{cts} Henry 50^{cts} Mary 74^{cts}
 Nov 6 12[#] Beef 1/2 bush meal Nov 18 8[#] Bacon 2 1/2 pks meal
 Nov 9 18[#] Beef 2 1/2 pks meal
 Nov 23 12[#] Beef 2nd Bacon 2 1/2 pks meal 2nd salt

Old Army

Aug 17 6th Pork 2^{pts} meal. Aug 24 8th Pork 2^{pts} meal.
 Aug 22 1/2^{lb} May tobacco 20^{cts} Aug 31 5th Pork 2^{pts} meal.
 Sept 5 Act Spiller \$1.90 Sept 7 8th Pork 2^{pts} meal
 Sept 12 8th Cash Sept 14 8th Pork 2^{pts} meal Sept 21 8th Pork
 2^{pts} meal Sept 18th 1/2^{lb} May tobacco 35^{cts}
 Sept 28 8th Pork 2^{pts} meal Cotton picking \$2.58
 Oct 5 4th Bacon 5th Beef 2^{pts} meal Sept 29. 1866 Act with Enoch \$5.60
 Oct 12 8th Bacon 2^{pts} meal Oct 11. Act Spiller \$1.45
 Oct 11 Act Snow \$4.50 1/2^{lb} parts \$5.00
 Oct 19 8th Bacon 2^{pts} meal 5th Bacon 1^{pt} meal
 Cotton picking \$1.03. Cotton picking 83^{cts}
 Nov 6 11th Beef 1/2^{lb} meal Nov 9 11th Beef 2^{pts} meal
 Nov 18 8th Bacon 2^{pts} meal Nov 23 15th Beef 2^{pts} meal

Wife is lost.

If like: Apples

~~Sarahs~~

~~Wife~~

~~Mrs. S. (mother) found: fork~~

~~purple: quills~~

~~Sarahs~~

~~children: play~~

~~Young~~

Olivier

Oct 19 5[#] Bacon 1/2 bush meal Oct-26 6[#] Bacon 1/2 bush meal

Oct-26 Act-Spiller \$3.50 3[#] Bacon 1/2 meal

Cotton picking \$1.23

Nov 6 9[#] Beef 1/2 bush meal Nov 9 9[#] Beef 1/2 bush

Nov 18 6[#] Bacon 1/2 bush meal Nov 23 3[#] Bacon 9[#] Beef 1/2 bus

Nov 23 3[#] Salt

Wash

- Oct 19 7th Bacon 2 1/2 pks meal Oct 26 8th Bacon 2 1/2 pks
~~Oct 20~~ 3rd Bacon 1 pk meal Cotton picking .63^{cb}
Nov 6 13th Buy 8th Wash meal
Nov 9 8th Buy 2 1/2 pks meal Nov 18 3rd Bacon 2 1/2 pks meal
Nov 23 12th Bacon 2 1/2 pks meal

Jim Clark
 Oct 23 3rd Bacon 2 gal meal Nov 1 Jim & Sam Clark 7
 Bacon 3rd for Merrill 1 pk & 5 1/2 gal meal
 Sam 1/2 plug tobacco Nov 4th by Capt 5th Bac
 Nov 7 6th Beef 8th 1st meal Merrill
 Oct 30 & Nov 2 2nd Lost by Merrill
 Nov 8 Jim & Sam Clark 18th Beef 5 1/2 gal meal
 Sam Clark 14th Beef. Clarke 11th Bacon Nov 10
 5th Beef, 6 gal meal Nov 15 Sam Clark 12th Bacon 6th Sa
 Nov 23 Sam Clark 10th Bacon Jim 15th Bacon 3 pks 1 gal meal
 ' ' 3rd Bacon 1 pk meal Nov 28 5th Bacon 4 gal meal
 Nov 29 Paid \$90 for the work of Peter Clemens. —————
 Jan 1 5th Bacon 2 gal meal Sam Clark 1 plug tobacco 75^{cts}
 Sam Clark 1 plug tobacco \$1.00
 4th meat 3 gal meal 7th 1/2 meal 4 gal meal
 Jan 20 2 gal 7th meat - 3rd meat 1 1/2 gal meal
 Feb 5 Sam Clark 1 plug tobacco \$1.00
 Feb 15 Jim Clark 1 plug tobacco 8th & 11th meat
 9th gal meal 1 1/2th meal -
 Sam Clark 1 plug tobacco
 20th meat 10 gal meal
 Sam Clark 1 plug tobacco
 21st meat 11 1/2 gal meal

1858
 Jan 17 8 hators borrowed \$4.50
 Jan 20 1/2 bush meal 8th meat 18th Bacon
 Feb 3 2 bush Corn 1/2 bush meat 1/2 bush tobacco 3 bush meal
 Feb 12 8th meat = 4 bush 1/2 bush 1 bush 1 bush
 Feb 21 1 bush 1/2 Corn 1 bush 1 bush 1 bush
 Feb 21 1 bush tobacco \$1.25 20 barrels Corn
 Feb 15 1 bush Corn 11th meat Feb 27 1/2 25 1/4th meat
 Feb 26 3 gal Coffee 1 pr Cotton Cord \$1.25
 Mar 8 1/2 ham meat Mar 15 14th meat
 Mar 28 1 Scott's plow 1 hell Bolt Mar 20th 1th tobacco
 Apr 4 27th Bacon 11th Salt Apr 1 30 gns lead corn
 Apr 4 1 qt Whiskey Apr 7 1th tobacco
 Apr 10 19th Bacon Apr 27 5-1th Bacon 1 bushels Cotton
 Apr 27 2 bushels bread Corn May 8 1 Sweep
 May 17 2 bushels 40 yrs Corn May 22 2 pr Axes \$6.00
 May 18 1 BBL Corn 1 wedding hoe - 21st 22 bundles fodder
 May 25 1 BBL Corn - 28th 14 bundles fodder - 30th one BBL corn
 June 3 4 2/2th Bacon - 4th 2 bush corn - 8th 1 BBL
 June 24 2 bush Credit to Isaac 6 doz bundles fodder
 June 30 1 plug tobacco 60 1 doz bundles fodder
 July 11 11th Bacon July 22 1 plug tobacco 60^{cts}
 July 28 \$1.00 Borrowed 2 bush meal Aug 15 9th Bacon
 Aug 20 2 bush meal 30th Bacon 3 1/2 24th Bacon
 Sept 10 2 1/2th Salt - 19th 1th Sugar gathered 3 bush 3 prs Corn
 Oct 5 \$2⁰⁰ Coffee 1/2 plug tobacco 24th Bacon 27th BBL
 Oct 8 12 1/2th Salt (Oct 19) 1 bottle whiskey Nov 9 22th Beef

1868
 Jan 8 Rice Nathan Borrowed \$ 3.00
 Jan 16 6[#] Meat Jan 23rd 10[#] Meat
 Jan 19 5^{1/2}[#] Meat
 Jan 31 20 Cash borrowed
 Feb 15 20[#] Meat Jordan Nathan Cornado and
 Feb 20th 18^{1/2}[#] Meat
 Mar 21 20[#] Bacon April 7 23[#] Bacon
 April 24 32^{1/2}[#] Bacon May 22 3[#] to Isaac \$3.75
 May 20 1^{1/2} bush peas June 5th 30^{1/2}[#] Bacon
 June 9 12[#] Salt June 24th one bush Corn Credit Isaac
 July 6 \$1.55 paid Isaac Aug 1 1 days work
 July 14 2 bush corn Sept 7-24th Bacon Nov 7. 20th Beef 5[#] Salt
 Nov 11 18[#] Beef 1 day 1/2 to 3 hands at 50^{ct} per day

\$ 61.80

Cotton Crop 907[#] Total $\frac{61.90}{34.00}$ 1/4 for Rent
 27.90

1868

Jan 7 Jolly Jones 10[#] Pork 10^{cts} #
 Jan 13 2 bush meal
 Jan 16 7[#] meat Jan 22^{ord} 10[#] meat
 Jan 19 5[#] meat
 Jan 28 13[#] meat Feb 5th 13[#] meat
 Feb 19 14[#] Lard - 11^{1/2} # meat
 Feb 22 3 gals Coffee Feb 28th 1 gal whiskey
 Feb 27 1th tobacco 25^{cts} Feb 29th 21th meat - 1 gal. Sugar
 Mar 6th 1 flow Bin - Mar 8th 19 1/2 Bacon
 Mar 17 2th tobacco Mar 25th 5 gal whiskey May 11th 2 worth wine 9.8
 April 1 bus' seed corn, May 9 1 sweep
 May 16 8[#] Bacon - 4[#] Sugar 2 binding horse 25^{cts}
 May 22 8 1/2 Coffee - 23rd 1 bush peas May 25th 1/2 bush peas \$1.00
 June 16 1/2 plug tobacco 50^{cts} June 26th 1 plug tobacco 50^{cts}
 July 3 1 qt - Stillin 8^{cts} July 5th 2th Coffee 1/2 bush corn
 July 4 12[#] flour July 10th 1 bush 3 pk's corn July 21st Paid Henry 8.25
 July 20 Credited to 30 y's corn to feed Jim & Calvin
 July 27 2th Coffee & 2th Sugar July 27th 1 1/2 bush meal 15[#] Bacon
 Aug 28 4[#] Sugar 1 plug tobacco 75^{cts} 1 1/2 days work
 Aug 14 5[#] Bacon Aug 19th 18 1/2[#] Bacon 2 bush meal
 Sept 7 30 1/2[#] Bacon - 3rd 3[#] Bacon - 1 - 4[#] salt
 Sept 30 1/2 plug tobacco 25^{cts} Sept 13th 11 1/2[#] flour
 Oct 5 2 dollars worth coffee Oct 7th 7[#] Bacon
 Oct 17 17[#] Bacon Oct 17th 2[#] Bacon (Oct 17) Paid for
 picking Cotton Manderson \$179 1/2 Feb 9 1/2 cts ^{10.00} Larc 194 lbs cotton
 Ev 98 lbs at 65 cts per lb Jan 88, Nov 7 5th Coffee 12th Beef Nov 9. 15 1/2

Feb 22 Agnus Hermin
 " 11 # meat - 4 # Salt - 14 # meat
 21 1 # plug tobacco
 27 2 1/2 gal Coffee 1 bush Corn
 Feb 24 1 yr shoes \$2.50 Mar 3rd 1 scotch 1 hick bott 1 clavis
 Mar 5 1 # corn Mar 25 5 qts Whiskey 24 # Bacon
 Mar 11 1 # tobacco 2 # plugs tobacco Mar 26
 Apr 3 2 1/2 bush 6 2/3 Corn 1/2 bush seed Corn April 9
 Apr 16 1 # plug tobacco 50 # ~~3 1/2 # Salt~~ 17 1/2 40 # Bacon
 May 7 5 1/2 yrs 8 1/4 bush seed Corn 1 soup 2 bush corn
 May 21 1 yr shoes \$3.00 May 19 1 cast plow joint the wedding hoe \$1.25
 June 13 19 # Bacon June 23 1 1/2 bush corn
 July 9 2 bush corn 31 # Bacon order to John Snow July 18 \$3.00
 July 16 11 # Salt July 20 1 1/2 bush corn \$1.25
 Aug 4 6 # Bacon Aug 14 1 bush meal, 5 # Bacon
 [Redacted] # Bacon, Sept 19 50 # borrowed 1 bush corn
 Oct 15 15 # Bacon (Oct 17) 3 1/2 # flour for picking cotton
 Oct 17 S Manderson \$2.08 1/2. Heds \$ 1.21 Isaac 187 & 2-141 lbs corn
 at 55 cts for hundred for hundred for 34 lbs Amica 39 lbs
 at 24 act John Snow \$2.55 - 1 yr shoes
 Oct 17. Paid in all for picking cotton \$13.58 1/2
 Nov 5 16 # Beef Nov 9 29 # Bacon Nov 9 1 # Sugar
 1 days work due Isaac total \$ 106.34 1/2
 Cotton Corp total 2341 # - 1/2 Rent \$ Bill 24.30
 30.64 1/2
 58.0 1/2
 \$72.12

Feb 22 Johnson 15 1/2 barrel 2 bush Corn
 Feb 28 10 M. fish. 2 gal salt 1/2 bush Corn
 Feb 28 one thrown for Swingle tree
 Mar 7 25 yds Corn Mar 8th 1/4th Bacon
 Mar 8 50 yds Corn ~~1 barrel~~
 Mar 12 24th Bacon, 1 Barrel & 25 yds Corn
 Mar 13 2 bush Corn Mar 21 1 BBL Corn
 Mar 21 19th Bacon Mar 25 2 bush Corn
 Mar 26 1 BBL Corn Mar 24th 1 set cups & pans \$1.00
 1 set plates \$1.50 1 pr shoes woman \$2.00
 1 pr men shoes \$3.00, 2 Spitting Borks .70
 1 barrel rat \$4.00 Mar 26 15 1/2th Bacon # Bacon 1 BBL corn
 April 2 2 bush & 32 yds Corn April 4th Bacon 1 BBL corn
 April 7 1/2 bush sud corn 1st lot of
 April 1 BBL Corn - 1:16th 1 BBL Corn 1:18th 2 1/2 bush corn
 April 25 - 1 BBL corn
 April 21st 44th Bacon ~~1 barrel~~ 30 bushels Cotton Seed to credit
 April 28 20th salt & 1/2 day work to Tom Johnson, 2 pair \$1.00
 May 1st 1 BBL Corn & one half bushels ears 2 bushels fine corn
 May 7 1/2 bush sud corn May 8th 48th Bacon 1/2 bush sud corn
 May 9 one Sweep 2 bushels Corn and half
 May 11 1 barrel Corn May 22 2nd lot of \$2.50
 May 18 1 BBL Corn 1/2 bush Corn May 25 38 1/2 Bacon 1 BBL corn
 May 27 1/2 Seed corn & 50 bundles fodder - 29th 2 1/2 bush corn
 June 9 1 BBL Corn
 June 10 19th Bacon - 14th 1 BBL Corn June 19 1 BBL & 2 bush corn
 June 23rd ~~1 barrel~~ 33 1/2th Bacon July 1 Johnson 1 Sugar & 7 salt

Feb 24 Old Henry 1st tobacco
 Mar 5 5 1/2 gal Meal Mar 3rd 8th Meat \$12.50
 Mar 11 7th Bacon Mar 16th 7 1/2th Bacon
 Mar 18 Account of John Snow \$6.15 April 13th 6th Salt
 April 26 25th Bacon May 29 21th Bacon
 June 10 7 B B Corn Credited to his account -
 11 & 12 5 - - - - -
 16 5 - - - - -

June 19 5 1/2 bush - Corn + 2 barrels
 July 4 online Act Spiller \$5.00 Feb 6 \$6.00 act John Snow
 July 11 Act John Snow \$5.15 -
 July 16 let Old Henry have five dollars to buy shoes
 Aug 1 1/2 July tobacco 4th Aug 5 \$5.00 Cash
 Aug 9 18th Bacon Aug 14 \$1.00 Cash Aug 12 1 bush meal
 Aug 29 Charged to his Credit \$1.00 Borrowed Sept 28 1 bush corn out of crib
 Oct 10 paid Oliver \$5 1/4 for Old Henry done by work
 Oct 15 Act Brady \$3.45 - \$4.85 - act John Snow Oct 24
 Nov 7 7 1/2th Beef Nov 9 18th Beef
 Jan 8 1889 online Borrowed \$5.00

total \$51.25
 36.85
 \$54.90

4 22
 5 4
 5 94
 22
 27.94

Isaac

Mar 6th 13[#] meat -- 5 gal meal
 Mar 13 2 bottles whiskey \$2.00 7[#] meat
 Mar 20 \$1.00 due for going after Tom Chandler, borrowed .50^{ch}
 Mar 24 15[#] Bacon April 5th 16^{1/2} Bacon
 April 26 19[#] Bacon May 15 plug tobacco \$1.00
 June 3 1 pr shoes \$3.00 June 17 1/2 plug tobacco 50^{cts}
 June 16 21[#] Bacon June 24th credited to 6.00 corn
 June 30 Credited 1 bushel corn July 4 1 dollar borrowed
 July 11 going in watermelon field for riding out without leave
 July 15 order to John Snow \$3.70 Aug 13 9[#] Bacon 1 plug tobacco 75^{cts}
 July 14 going in watermelon patch without leaf
 Aug 20 2 bush meal Aug 24th 12^{1/2} Bacon Sept 19- 8[#] Bacon
 Sept 3 Paid John Snow 5.00 Oct 7 22[#] Bacon Sept 28th 1 bush corn
 Oct 19 2 bush corn Nov 18th 11[#] Bacon L & J[#] Bacon
 Nov 12 1 pr shoes John Snow \$5.00
 19th spinning cotton
 total \$9.45
 775
 0

Sam Clark

Mar 13th

Mar 8 1 qt whiskey, 14[#] Pork 2[#] tobacco, Charles 1[#] tobacco
 Mar 9 James Clark for Charles 1[#] tobacco
 Mar 21 1/2 gal whiskey for Cal 1 ply tobacco

Jolly games

Oct 25 14 Bacon Oct-14- 8[#] Salt
 Oct 27 Paid in yardings \$4 $\frac{80}{100}$ for picking cotton
 Oct 27 1/2 ply tobacco Nov 2nd 6[#] Bacon
 Nov 3 4[#] Beef (Oct-27) paid balance \$1 $\frac{20}{100}$ picking cotton
 Nov 6 1 qt whiskey. Nov 17th 15[#] Beef for Isaac for home
 Nov 20 1/2 ply tobacco. 2 days due Isaac + 25^{cts} for 1/2 day
 Dec 10 4[#] Bacon

Dr Bill
 \$ 173.50
 38.50
 \$ 212.00
 194.05

John Mitchell Due to him for Matches & Soap Paid

- Mar 17 8 1/2 Bacon 3 gal meal 1# Coffee
- Mar 19 Porter 2 play tobacco \$1.00
- Mar 21 50# Bacon Mar 26 20# flour 4# Salt
- Mar 19 1 Looking glass 75 - 1 gal pitch 150 1 set tinspans 30
2 pots \$5.50 1 pk sud corn
- Apr 5 1# Coffee 4# Salt Apr 10 1/2 bush sud corn
- Apr 22 107 bundles fodder Apr 25 7# Bacon & 2# Coffee
- May 7 \$1.50 Jordan \$1.00 Tom for work, Parrot 75 cts
- May 7 1/2 bush sud corn May 18 26# Bacon 2 wading holes
June 23 100# Oats \$3.00 June 6 8.00 for hire \$6.00 hire
- June 21 1/2 play tobacco 50 cts 1 wade work Nancy \$2.50 - 1 day
Cloth, soap, Nelly 4# 28# Bacon July 13 Paid gink \$10.00
- July 4 17# Flour July 25 Paid games \$3.25
- Apr 10 1 Lin Bucket 40 cts Aug 5 1 play tobacco 75 -
- July 30 20# to buy corn Aug 27 2 play tobacco
- Sept 23 1 pk meal 3 1/2# Bacon - 28# 1 play tobacco
- Oct 8 3# Coffee Oct 9 Paid Jordan 75 cts for picking cotton
- Oct 18 1 smoking Tobacco Oct 10 1/2 doz Tobacco (13) 11 Salt
- Oct 24 Paid Nit \$1.20 for work (Oct 31) 1 pg Tobacco
- Nov 8 20 1/2# Beef for Nov 17 2 play tobacco
6 1/2 days to Isaac 25 cts for half day

Total \$45.75 1/3

Received in full all acct & Bills between
of P Mitchell & myself O Bush Clement
March 11th 1869

James Hubbard

Mar 20 4[#] Tobacco \$1.25 - pr [#] Sweet One Weeding hoe \$1.25 -
 Apr 27 100[#] Bacon - 24[#] Sugar, Little gum one Sweep & hoe \$1.50
 Little gum \$1.50 - gum Big act John \$3.00
 Oct 8 Cal Hubbard 35[#] Bacon = \$8.75 Big gum \$2.50 - Sarah \$2.00
 Little gum \$2.75

May 9 Crider 16[#] Coffee 3[#] to dollar
 Sept 7 7[#] Sugar

\$7.80
 2.00
 \$5.80

James Hubbard
 Mrs. S. Barber

I've
 I've

~~June 2 7[#] Coffee \$1.00~~

Summit & Chandler

June 6 6 hand 2 days \$8.00 - 12th Muey one day 50^{cts}
 June 16 hire hands 2 days at one dollar a day 2.00
 one week worth to Muey \$3.00⁰⁰
 Oct 9 Paid hand ~~for~~ \$2.50 (Oct 17) Paid Manderson \$4.46^{1/2}
 Oct 17 Paid Mels \$2.03^{1/2} Ike 327 Er 295 bbs cotton at 65 cts
 total \$26.00

Nov 6 Reeton 40 gr Linnine to one day's Cotton picked
 for 3 hands at 50 per day. total \$78.36^{1/2}
 In file 3.00
 Total Cotton Crop 2594^{1/4} Pnt-
 101,36^{1/2}

Johnson

June 30 2 bushels Corn July 9 2 bush Corn 1 dollar hire mme
July 17 10th Salt 4th Bacon. July 21st Paid for hire of hands \$1.75
July 20 1/2 bush corn July 27 8th Bacon 1 Box pills \$1.50
Aug 4 1 bushel Meal 11th 1/2 bush Corn 1th Bacon
" 15 1th Bacon Aug 19 1th Bacon 4 1/2th Salt
Aug 23 1 bush meal 1th Bacon Aug 27 14th Bacon
Sept 7 4th Salt - 8th - 12th Bacon
Oct 7 19th Bacon Nov 11 Store 50^{cts} to pay Kuten
Nov 21 17th Salt to John Mitchel Cr for plow steel \$1.35

total \$146.70
6.20
Gr Bill - \$152.90

Cotton account

Clements & Chandler Oct-17 \$1252
100

Rufus Herring picking cotton 2566 [#] ~~\$1870~~ \$13.70

Nov 7 paid Lenoek \$3.00 Paid 1.50 on Missiles cotton
Only see him \$3.40

Nov 7 paid out \$8.00

Nov 16 Nabors 1 plug tobacco
Total \$147.86 1/2
Dr Bill \$25.90

Total Cotton Crop 865 1/2 [#] - 1/4 Rent =

173.76 1/2

Keton

Oct 24 Keton [#] Bacon
~~Spice & salt~~

Nov 7 R Matthews 48[#] Beef

1869
 Jan 7 Rabon 1 flow point 35^{cts} 11 # Bacon 25^{cts} pr #
 Jan 24 3 1/2 # Spinning Cotton 13 # Bacon at 25^{cts} pr #
 \$1.00 Cash Borrow Feb 6 17 # Bacon 9 # Salt
 Apr 2 25 # Bacon 5th 1 # tobacco 50^{cts}
 Apr 22 10 # Bacon Apr 29 7 # flower
 1 bush seed potatoes. 2 bush oats
 18 # Pork June 9 23 # Bacon 25^{cts} pr #
 June 7 2 pr Shovel \$5.00 12 # Bacon 25^{cts} pr #
 \$2.00 July 1 6 # Salt 60^{cts}
 July 9 14 1/2 # Bacon 25^{cts} pr # 1 # tobacco \$1.30
 July 15 1 # tobacco \$1.30 July 24 1 peck Peas 35^{cts}
 July 2 2 # Bacon 30^{cts} pr # July 13 15 1/2 # Bacon
 after deducting for work \$33 1/2 \$58.43 1/2

Jan 10 gone 16[#] Bacon 25^{ct} # 30th Spinning Cotton
 Jan 24 19th Bacon 25^{ct} #
 Feb 6 11th Bacon April 2nd 25th Bacon 30^{ct} #
 April 20 20 bush / 8 Corn \$125^{ct} in bush
 April 30 Brought forward from last years acct \$ 17.95⁻
 1/2^{bush} seed potatoes 2 bush seed oats
 2 bush Corn 8th May 6th Salt
 16th Pork
 June 5 Account gone Snow \$ 5.70. Buckaroo \$ 2.65⁻
 June 11 38th Bacon 25^{ct} # 16th Salt.
 July 6 1st Bacon \$1.30 July 22 2 bush meal
 Aug 27 20th Bacon July 14 1 ply tobacco 50^{ct}
 Sep 9 1/2 ply tobacco 25^{ct}

Feb 3 17[#] Cucumber
Bacon at 22^{cts}

April 2 25[#] Bacon 30^{cts} # April 4 15 9[#] Salt

April 30 Brought forward from last year account - ~~11.00~~

2 bush seed oats 1 seed potatoes

5[#] Pork 1 bush seed Corn 18 gal seed corn

June 7 19 1/2 bush Corn June 10 44^{cts} Bacon 28^{cts} #

1[#] tobacco \$1.30 June 22 2 1/2 bush Corn \$1.50 per bush

Jim Mathews 130
 Feb 5 6th Salt 130
 April 2 25th Bacon 30^{cts} m # 260
 April 20 20 bush Corn \$1.25 - ~~1~~ bush
 April 30 Brought forward from last years acc. \$27.90
 1 bush seed potatoes
 May 12 6th Salt, ~~May~~ April 17 \$1.00
 16th Pork P. 9th 28th Bacon at 22^{cts} m #
 June 11 2th tobacco \$3.20 Set Bee 10^{cts} co \$5.00
 June 15 Jordan Mathews 1th tobacco \$1.30
 July 9 2 bush Corn, July 13 Jordan Mathews 1th tobacco \$1.30
 July 24 1th tobacco \$1.30 July 27 5th 6th Quinine 5th m #
 Aug 7 2 bush corn July 13 5th Bacon 1th ply tobacco

Isaac

Jan 1869	10 th Bacon 25 ^{pr} #	
Feb 7	Borrowed \$5.00	
Mar 30 th	Borrowed \$5.00	April 2 25 th Bacon 30 ^{ch} #
May 10	7 th P Pork	
May 22	Set John Swine \$5.80 15 Pork	
	for hire of mule one day to ride over Country	\$4.50
June 7	Money to pay hands for hoeing	\$3.10
June 10	Money Paid to Chris	\$1.50
June 9	3 th Bacon	June 21 3 th Bacon 30 ^{ch} #
Sept 18	Set Buck & co	\$24.40
		\$10.00
		2.75-
		1.55-

1855 J P Mitchell

Jan 20 14th Bacon 15th flour

April 2 50th Bacon 30th for hand going halves J. S. M.

May 3 32 1/2 bush Corn May 22 1/2 gal whiskey & 1/2 gal \$2.65

June 17 17th Bacon 2 bush meal

July 11 \$1.00 to pay Nargrow July 22 2 bush Corn

July 23 Bacon 4th July 27 6th tobacco

July 12 26th Bacon

Oct 28 J P Mitchell borrowed \$1.00

Nov 5 credited on account \$20.00
Dec 20 Borrowed \$5.00 to pay Nargrow

1864

Old Army

Jan 22 \$1500 Borrowed
 Apr 25 25# Bacon 30
 Borrowed 50^{cts} at time horse shed
 May 10 8# Pickle Pork Act John Snow Apr 1st \$5.50
 12# Pork Act to Beck & Co \$3.50
 May 31 7# Pork Pickle May 29 Act John Snow \$6.70
 June 10 14# Bacon June 14th 1 ply tobacco 40^{cts}
 July 13 1 ply tobacco Sept 2 1/2# Powder 3 1/2^{cts}
 Act to Beck & Co
 Aug 19 Act Beck & Co Act John Snow \$9.90 + 21.00
 Act Beck & Co \$6.65
 Act John Snow \$6.70

Dec 24 1 ply tobacco \$50.10
 Jan 13 Evadne \$5.00

\$ 50.10
 50
 13 2.30
 3.95
 5.00
 2.50

Nils April 2 1869

April 2 2 plugs tobacco 50 each
2 Lupton Shovels 2 Scooters 2 brooms and gear

April 10 2 plugs tobacco 50^{cts} a plug

April 18 Polly 15th Bacon 30^{pr} # May 3rd 1 plug tobacco

2 pr Shows \$2.50 pr pair

May 7 Cyman 10 yd calico \$1.50

Nils 2 pr Shows \$6.⁰⁰

3 steel winding haws

Polly 6 yd Domestic \$1.00 borrowed one dollar to buy med

2 gal Molasses \$1.⁰⁰ pr gal Nils

May 17 Set John Snow \$10.00 Nils

May 18 53th Pork 5 plug tobacco \$2.50 Nils

4th Shot 50 caps to William \$1.50

June 3rd Little Isaac 9/2th Shot 30^{pr} # \$1.00 worth powder, 1 bag \$4.00

June 5 Millers account John Snow \$5.55

" " Nils on " " " " \$10.70

" " one Bells flour between Mrs W & N \$8.50 = \$10.00

June 5 Williams set Buck & Co \$10.50

June 5 Deason set Buck & Co \$15.63

June 9 Nils 4 plugs tobacco 40^{cts} pr plug

William Bump 3 gal Molasses

Big Isaac 1 Box match 5^{cts} 2 gal Molasses \$2

Deason 1 wrap \$2.25

June 24 Elvira Charge to B Deason set Buck & Co \$10.⁰⁰
" " " " 1 plug tobacco 50^{cts}

June 24 ~~Isaac~~ ~~1 shirt - \$1.75 - 1 plug tobacco~~ ⁴⁰ ~~\$1.75~~
 Isaac 1 shirt - \$1.75 - 1 plug tobacco 40
 B. Isaac 1 fryin, \$1.00 Nels 4 plugs tobacco \$2.00
 William 2 plug tobacco \$1.00
 Nels ¹⁰⁰ ~~100~~ 3.00 in Cash to pay hire
 July 20 Nels 5 plug tobacco - \$2.50
 July 24 Bob Smith 1 plug tobacco 55^{cts}
 July 27 Bob. G. 1/4 # Powder 30^{cts} 2 # Shot 60^{cts}
 Bill Mathews 1st Powder \$1.25
 Sick Bill by Deason 2 plugs tobacco \$1.00
 Deason 1 plug tobacco - at 75^{cts} pr #
 July 13 Nels 4 plugs tobacco \$2.00. 40 grs Quinine \$2.00
 " 2 pills 100^{cts}
 Aug 25 Big Bob 12 # Bacon at 30^{cts} pr #
 Aug 29 Nels 2 plugs tobacco \$1.00
 Aug 31 Deason 13 # Bacon.
 Sept 1 L Isaac, Bottle powder 2 plug tobacco \$1.40
 Sept 5 Deason \$2.00 Borrowed
 Sept 5 Elvira 1 plug tobacco 50^{cts} Sick Mathews 1st tobacco \$1.30
 Sept 7 Big Isaac 27 # Bacon by order Sissen
 Sept 12 Bob Smith 1 plug tobacco 50^{cts}
 Sept 11 L Isaac 1st capul 35^{cts} 1 pr show \$3.00
 Sept 12 Nels 4th tobacco \$2.00
 Sept 18 30th Bacon furnished Isaac by order Sissen
 Sept 20 6th Bacon furnished Sissen for Rag
 Oct 6 \$1.00 worth tobacco shown
 Oct 1 Cal Husband 2 plugs tobacco \$1.00

Nov 11 Kilo \$6.80 + 81.00 with tobacco + 20[#] Bacon
 Oct 28 Kilo 10 plugs tobacco
 Nov 5 Change to Kilo for Cynthia 50^{cts}
 " " Fontaine 1 plug tobacco
 Dec 9 Nelson 2 plugs tobacco 50^{cts} 12 plug
 " " Fontaine 1/2 plug 25^{cts}
 " " " 50^{cts} Borrowed
 Sept 18 Kilo act Beck & C
 Dec 20 10[#] flour to Fontaine \$1.00
 Dec 24 1 plug tobacco Fontaine
 Dec 25 L. Isaac 10[#] Pork \$1.50
 Dec 25 Jim Hubbard 25[#] flour \$2.00 Cash
 Dec 26 Credits to Jim Crider \$1.00
 Dec 23 Kilo 1 bottle whiskey \$1.00 Sugar 60^{cts}
 Jan 1 14[#] Rope to Sissie
 Jan 7 making with Dick Mathews he owes me 80^{cts} in a
 Jan 8 order for \$15.00 Beck & C
 Jan 15 Bill Royer 1 plug tobacco
 Jan 30 Kilo 7[#] flour

\$6.20
 \$50.00 Kilo
 50
 5.00
 3.00
 5.00
 93.50
 1.60
 Paid Marion
 80^{cts}
 Paid
 30.10
 108.10

Mar 4, 1870 Bill Royer has settled
 all accounts with me by Book
 A. Wick

Jackson BBL's Cor n .0 7 7/2 7/2 3170
 6340

1 pt gal
 8 3

114
 284
 471
 423

12

114
 423
 155.3

3 1/2 1 1/1

40 2/3

5/80
 2/96.3

524 100+

360
 52

3 1/2 2
 2
 2/3

34 26

2 2 4 4

4 bush to sup miss
 21 hrs 1 KK Juice

12 hrs MK
 3
 4 ↑
 8 ↓
 12 1/2

2241
 932

2) 3100
 1366 58
 932

38 55
 615
 51

70 2

